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GEORGE N. OLSON
Exeter

November,

Town Manager
J 987 -April,

2005

In 1975, a young man arrived in Exeter from Kentucky to become the Executive Director of the
newly formed Rockingham/Stratford Planning Commission. He quickly developed a liking for the
community of Exeter and the work here, and when the Exeter Town Manager's position became
available in 987, he applied and was appointed to the position. This year on April T", George Olson
retires after almost
8 years as the fown Manager.
1

1

Responsible for the overall working of the

Town

and the supervision of over 100 employees, George
fair and knowledgeable. He has

has developed a top staff of department heads by being friendly,

never hesitated to

listen to the

opinion of others and always considered

could occasionally become hectic

though a tough assignment or

been very

little

in

task.

it

seriously.

Although things

town, he never was too busy to share a laugh to help people get

It is

worth noting that while he has been

turnover except though retirements.

Town Manager,

there has

George has succeeded in maintaining the small town atmosphere in a growing community. Citizens knov\ that
his door is always open and everyone who comes to his office is treated seriously and with respect. No matter
how small the problem that a person might have, or how many times George might have heard the same
complaint, people know they will get a fair hearing from George and he will do whatever he can to help.
Advice and answers arc always dispensed with a smile and a tlrni handshake.
George has done much

enhance the physical appearance ot the community. His quietly persistent manner
when otiicrwise it might ha\e died. He was one of the prime movers in initiating
the dc\elopment of the waterfront including Stewart's Park. Many infrastructure projects got a constant nudge
from George to keep them going. While with RPC George was instru-mental in getting the COAST bus
system going. As Town Manager, he worked tirelessly with the committee that eventually brought pas.sengcr
train service back to Rxeter He also oversaw the relief efforts during the 1996 tlood.
to

has often kept a project going

In

addition to his

work

m

l\n\n.

George has shared

his ideas

and energy with the

New Hampshire

Association (now the Local Government Center.) hirst elected to the Board of Directors
several offices until he

became President

in

will retire as

Town Manager,

many of the important
LGC. echoed others when he said. "He

but continue to live in E.xeter. the

daughters Cathy and Esther have called

home

for so

able to find him getting his morning cup of Earl

"Although the town will continue to

move

Municipal

1990. he served

in

1999. In addition, he has chaired

committees of the LGC. John Andrews. E.xecutive Director of the
one of the most decent, even-tempered, tiioughlful. ethical and savvy managers"

George

in

many

Grey

years.

tea at

Me

More

community

A Jtivorilc piislime

he. his wife

Sue and

and Ollie's. As one Department Head

i>/

the Ohoii Jiiniily.

is

known.

often than not. youTI probably

forward, he will be missed."

Ciiiuil hotil. Liifihiiiil:

that he has

still

be

slated.

FACTS ABOUT OUR TOWN
Founded:

1638
125 feet

Elevation:

Ave. temperature:

46.3

Population
December, 1975

-

October, 2003 - 14,505

10,200

Personnel- Town
112

Full-time (40+ hours)

7

Elected:

21

Part-time:

Roads
& Vehicles

Pieces of Major Equipment

Miles Maintained

in

Maintained
2004- 65

Snow Plowed 1/04-12/04 - 79.5
Snow storms: 8
5

Total Inches of

-

Call Fire:

21

97

Inches

Ice storms:

Water

&

Sewer System (2004 figures)

Length of water line maintained - 43 miles
Length of sewer line maintained - 45 miles
Gallons water treated & pumped- 379,733,101
Gallons sewer treated & pumped - 663,400,000
Maximum gallons of Water produced in one day: ,644,283
1

Maximum

gallons of

Sewer

treated in

one day:

7,700,000

Town Hall Use
Number of times used

during 2004 - 76 (includes elections "1" for each)

Exeter Notables
Sculptor Daniel Chester French (Minuteman statue

at

Lexington, Mass and the statue of Lincoln

at the

Lincoln Memorial,

Washington, DC.) locally designed the War Memorial at Gale Park (represents "Mother Town" and "Soldier Son"). Henry
A. Shute, Exeter's beloved humorist, wrote The Real Diary of a Real Boy' and spent his entire life in Exeter. ("Every man

who

hasn't a village or country

boyhood

to look

back on has been cheated out of the best part of his

life.")

Points of Interest
The DownEaster

between Portland, Maine and Boston,
The first train station on Lincoln Street was built in 860.
The Folsom Tavern built around 1775 at the comer of Front and Water Streets, was recently moved to the front of the
property, across from the entrance to the Parkway, providing additional parking. George Washington "was there" on
November 4, 1789. Founders Park surrounding the Exeter Public Library at the falls of the Exeter River, was created to
commemorate the 350 anniversary of the founding of Exeter. Across the River from the Swasey Parkway the Powder
House (buih in 1771) may be viewed. The first dramatic use of the Powder House was the result of a ride by Paul Revere
(December, 1774) when he warned residents of Portsmouth that a British ship was leaving Boston to remove military
stores & solders from Fort William & Mary (Portsmouth Harbor). A number of the 72 barrels of gunpowder liberated
from the Fort by local residents were stored in the Powder House and may have been used at the Battle of Bunker Hill.
Mass., after

train station, located

many

on Lincoln

Street, provides train service

years of laying dormant to passenger service.

1

,

,

"Images of America - Exeter " by Carole Walker Aten; also from
1888-1988" by Nancy Carnegie Merrill): Powder House Committee minutes.

(partial information from

Exeter,

New Hampshire

Terms run March-March)
Current Officer

ELECTED OFFICERS

(Terms end April
Current Officer

30"")

APPOINTED OFFICERS

Council on Aging

Exeter River cont 'd

Evelyn Zamowski

Life

Alma

Life

Hall

Peg Duhamel
Robert Swasey
Frank Kozacka, Chair.
George Bragg

Life
Life

Life

Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
2007
2007
2007
2007
2005
2006

Peggy Lamb
James Reardon
Sandra Cross
Jane McCarthy

Robert Fitzpatrick
Lionel Ingram, Select. Rep

Michael Favreau, Rec.

Dir.

Ex-officio

Ted Klemarczyk, Alternate

2007

Water & Sewer Advisory Committee
W. Robert Kelly
Herb Moyer
Joseph Baillargeon,

Sr.

Wayne McRae
Rick Sawyer
William Campbell, Select. Rep.
Robert Eastman, Alt. Select. Rep.

George Olson, Tn. Mgr.
Recreation Advisory Committee
David Briden
Sarah Foss
Patricia Izzo

Mark Donovan
Norma Roberts
Open/Regular position

2007
2007
2005
2005
2006
2006

Paul Dinette, Select. Rep.

Exeter River Review Committee
Lionel Ingram, Selectman/Chair
Brian Comeau, Fire Chief
Victoria DelGreco, W/S Supt.
Jennifer Perry, Town Engineer

Rod Bourdon
Christopher Moutis
Neil Therrien

No

term

Dennis Derby, Plan. Bd. rep.
Robert Kelley, W/S Advisory Com.
Donald Clement, Cons. Comm. rep.
Arts Committee

rep.

*************************************************

VOLUNTEER APPLICATION
*************************************************

PHONE:

NAME:
ADDRESS:
In order to

make my

volunteer to serve
3, etc.,

contribution to the growth and welfare of the

on

the following Board(s) and/or Committee(s).

Town of Exeter, I am

willing to

My preference is indicated by

1

,

2

[Please circle "regular" or "alternate" for choice].

Planning Board (reg/alt)

Zoning Board of Adjustment

Conservation Commission (reg/alt)

Housing Authority

Budget Recommendations

Comm.

Historic District

(reg/alt)

Comm (reg/ah)

(elected)

Council on Aging

Water/Sewer Advisory

Recreation Advisory

Exeter Development Commission

Trust for

NH Lands

Emergency Management

Affordable Housing Committee
Arts Committee

Other
Please attach a brief statement as to why you feel qualified to serve as indicated above. You will be
contacted by the Selectmen for a brief interview with the Board prior to any appointment.

Mail

Board of Selectmen
Attn: Barbara Blenk

to:

10 Front Street

Exeter

NH 03833-2792

member on more than 1 appointed
one time. Selectmen will hold brief interviews of interested residents for future appointments].

[Note: Per Selectmen's Policy 92-13, no person shall serve as a regular

committee

at

MINUTES OF TOWN MEETING PROCESS FOR 2004
(abbreviated - refer to year-end 2003

Town

Report

& Town

Clerk's office for article description

&

details)

Saturday Februay?, 2004 9:00AM (Exeter Town Hall)

Deliberative Session:

Moderator Charles F. Tucker appointed Exeter resident Stephen G. Hermans Moderator Pro Tern for
Mr. Tucker is in the hospital recovering from heart by-pass. Mr. Hermans took the Oath
of Office prior to the opening of the session. Mr. Hermans explained Articles through 14 did not
chooses the Town Officers and their names will be on
require any action at this session as Article
the March 9"^ ballot. Articles 2 through 14 are Zoning Articles and have been heard at Planning
this session.

1

1

Board public hearings prior to this session and will appear on the ballot as written. This meeting has
no power to amend these Articles.
Article 15:

Slate of officers presented by

Nominating Committee:

Budget Recommendations Committee:
Curtis Mackail
Samuel Daniell
David Burden
James Baron
Paul Scafidi
Geoffrey Simard
Peter

Measurer of Wood/Bark:

Robert Eastman

Weigher:

Robert "Bucky"

No

Christopher Moutis

Gerry Hamel

Stuart Peeke

Anne Surman

Dow

Fence Viewer:

Article 16-17:

Justin Merrill

Rowe

action - will appear on ballot as presented.

reconsideration on Article

1

(It

was

also voted to restrict

7 in order to not be brought up again after one-half of the voters had

left

the session).

Article 18:
ballot as

Amended

to increase appropriation

amount

to

$975,000. So voted. Will appear on the

amended.
action - will appear on ballot as presented.

Article 19-23:

No

Article 24:

Amended by adding

the

word "to"

after the

words "with the proceeds from the

sale to

be applied..." So voted. Will appear on the ballot as amended.
Article 25-33:

No

Article 34:

Amended

action - will appear on ballot as presented.

to

add "the $40,000"

after the

word "supplementing",

delete the

word

"funds". So voted. Will appear on the ballot as amended.

Amended

Article 35:

sentence.

to

include "including possible use of the

So voted. Will appear on

Article 36-49:

No

the ballot as

Town

amended

action - will appear on ballot as presented.

Hall"' at the

end of the

Moderator Hermans asked if there was any other business to be brought forward. Hearing none, it
was moved and seconded to adjourn. All present were in favor. He declared the session adjourned
:00PM and reminded all voters of the ballot vote on Tuesday. March 9"\ [Note: 87 residents
checked in at the Checklist desk for this session.]
1

Respectfully submitted.

Linda Hartson Macomber

Town

Clerk

Our

Moose visiting E.xclcr in the Fall of 2004. traveling ALL over town
throughout the day. Seen here overlooking the Squamscott River
from the Swasey Parkway. (Is he smiling????)

're.sic/eul

'

10

at

MINUTES OF TOWN MEETING, MARCH 2004
Second Session - Exeter Town Hall - Tuesday, March 9, 2004
(Ballot on all articles;
(Refer to complete

Town

Warrant

in

Town

Town Moderator

Article

Selectmen (vote for

2):

Trustees of Library:
(vote for 3)

Trustee of Robinson Fund:
(vote for

*

= declared winner/result)

Report ending 2003 for

1652*

Paul A. Binette

1137*

Robert D. Eastman

1228*

Robert Ullrich

936

David Corbett

1284*

Betsey M. Crespi

1288*

Barbara Young

1388*
677*

Barbara Taylor Gagne

Trustee of Town Trust Fund: Sandra
(vote for

Robshaw
J.

645
1425*

Parks

1

Trustee of Swasey Parkway:
(vote for

description of articles)

Charles Tucker

Kristy

1

full

Grace Rogers

1456*

Margaret "Peg" Duhamel

1520*

1

Supervisors of Checklist:
(6 yr. term: vote for 1)

Supervisor of Checklist (4 year term completion) - misc. write-in candidates

Joanne Toland
Denise Delesdemier
Lois Mazurka

Zoning Amendments (2 - 14):
Adding definitions 8c re-number Article 2.2
Article 2
Article 3
Zoning District line change CT to C-2 in Article

Yes*
3.2

Article 12
Article 13

Open Space

Article 14

Art 9.1.8-adds reference to Plan. Bd's Site Plan for clarity

Article 5
Article 6

Article 7
Article 8
Article 9
Article 10
Article

1

Article 15

Article 4.3, Schedule
Art. 4.3, Sch.

II

Art. 4.3, Sch.

II

Art. 6. L2
Art. 6.

1

-

replacing phrases

- change maximum height
- add note to RU max. height

revise sub-section

D

revise subsections b, c

.4,

Art. 6. 10.6
Art. 7.5

1,

5

4

Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend
Amend

Article 4

35*

- Home Occupations

&d
-

Special Except.

- min. area Single-Family open space
Multi-Family open space
- Large Scale Multi-Family Open Space

7.6.1 Small-scale

Art. 7.6.2

Devel. Density regs, ensures affordable-30 yrs Yes*

Choose necessary Officers for ensuing year
Water Treatment Plant (bonds) $15,510,000

Article 16

New

Article 17:

New

Article 18:

Replace sanitary sewer line/Reconstruction Ports. Ave

Article 19:

Budget $15,382,186; if defeated, defauh budget
@$14,733,336

Article 20:

Discontinue Ambulance Fund: transfer to General Fund

(requires 3/5 approval)
Fire Station (bonds) $4,500,000 (requires 3/5 vote)

(requires 3/5 approval)

Article 21

:

145

No

609

1421

1343

No
No

383
416

Yes

142

No

694

Rescind bonding authority for Westside Dr. Sanitary sewer Yes

371

No

407

359

No

370

Create

Ambulance Expend. Trust Fund w/Gen'l Fund $$
equal to balance dissolved from Fund (see #20)

@ $500 rather than $100

Article 23:

Adopt Veteran's tax credit
Adopt tax credit-residential

Article 24:

Sell parcel

Article 22:

for service-connected total

Yes*
Yes*
Yes*

1

disability.

(Map

55, Lot 67) w/proceeds applied to debt

incurred to construct
Article 25:

new

Fire Station

project granted 9/30/93
Article 26:

Rescind bonding authority for

Town

Ofc. Maintenance

Yes*

granted 3/10/98 for $34,500
Article 27:

Authorize Selectmen to rent Raynes Farm for agriculture

Yes"

Article 28:

Article 29:

Raise $270,000 for Guinea/Hampton Rds improvements
Raise $1 1 5,000 to separate storm/sanitary sewer flows

Yes
Yes

Article 30:

Raise $100,000 to renovate

pool

Yes"

Article 3

Raise $ 1 00,000 to

station

Yes

on Lantern Lane
1

:

(the last interconnected in

Town swimming
purchase land for new fire

Raise $65,000 to refurbish Engine 2 (Mack Pumper)

Article 33:

Raise $45,000 to construct fire-rated stairwell

Article 34:

Raise $40,000 to complete fionding for storm water sewer

Article 35:

Raise $25,000 to study building options
Raise $12,000 for Rock. County

Article 37:

Raise $1

Article 38:

Raise $1 1 ,000 for Child

Article 39:
Article 40:
Article 41

:

Article 42:
Article 43:
Article 44:
Article 45:

Article 46:
Article 47:

Article 48:
Article 49:

@ Tn. Hall

193
841

No"

Yes"

281

No

Yes

No"

Yes"

840
316

@ Town Office

Community Action Pgm

Yes

783

No"

Yes"

429

Program Yes*
Yes*
Raise $10,000 to add to Bus Replacem't Capital Res. Fund Yes*
Raise $7,500 to support Seacoast Hospice
Yes*
Raise $6,500 to support Rock. Nutrition/Meals on Wheels Yes*
Raise $6,000 to support Richie McFarland Children's Ctr. Yes*
Eliminate Blue Bag user fees; expend, from Oper. Budget Yes
Modify disabled exemption to $ 1 25,000
Yes*
Raise $2,000 to support New Outlook Teen Center
Yes*
Raise $5,800 to support Lamprey Health Care
Yes*
Abandon rights, title & interest to land bisecting Lots 1 1
Yes
& 1 3 on Tax Map 27
Modify Elderly Exemptions - increase assessed values
V'es*
Ves
Estab. Municipal Budget Committee w/9 for '05 Tn Mtg.

395
448

,3

No

No

625
978
540
966
509

@ Lincoln St School

Article 36:

1

457
967
557

Town)

Article 32:

line

264 No
867
No*
242* No

1

for Seacoast

Big Brother/Big

Sister

& Family Services Inc.

169

626
658
368
688
038
350
328
707

No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No"

No
No
No

1070
433

464
418
657
250
226
487
1178

No"

723
513
519
956

1113

No

651

830

No*

938

There were 8,790 registered voters on the checklist; 20 new voters registered at the polls for a total of
8,810 registered voters on the checklist at end of day. There were 1,986 registered voters who cast
ballots - 1,839 voted in person and 146 absentee ballots cast: a 22.5% voter participation.
Respectfully submitted.

Linda Hartson Macomber,
Exeter

Town

CMC

Clerk
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BOARD OF SELECTMEN
This has been a unique year for the Board of Selectmen and the Town of Exeter. This was the last full
year the Board had the opportunity to work with George Olson, the Town Manager. After 17 years,

George will retire as of April K 2005. More will be said at a later date, but suffice it to say now that the
Board has appreciated George's wisdom, knowledge and good humor in dealing with matters of the
Town. He has worked tirelessly over the years on the many concerns and challenges that this Town has
faced, from floods to finances to festivities.

He

will be sorely missed.

Town had

to operate under a default budget. The Town
happen while still delivering the services that we have come
to expect. Unfortunately, several large projects were not completed such as some of the paving of
Town roads, but hopefully we will be able to catch up in the coming year.

This was the

first

year in several that the

employees deserve

making

credit for

that

was completed was the repairing of the Bandstand. From the material taken from the
commemorative medallions have been made and have been offered for sale, the proceeds of
which are being put towards a new pavilion being planned by the Swasey Parkway Trustees; a nice
connection between the past and future of the Town.

One

project that

old roof,

Open Space Committee brought forward five parcels for
two outright purchases and three purchases of easements. All five were
approved for purchase, using just under half the 3 million dollars that the Town voted in 2003 to
allocate for this purpose. These purchases will go towards maintaining the quality of life that we
cherish in this Town.
After

much

Selectmen

investigation and study, the

the

to consider,

Other concerns addressed by the Board

this year included the creation of a River Study Committee to
complex questions of how the Exeter River is used by several different constituencies of
the community and how it affects those who live along its banks. Another issue before the Selectmen is
the question of providing adequate parking downtown. With more vehicles registered than people,

deal with the

(17,000 vehicles registered verses a population of just over 14,000) parking particularly long-term
parking has frustrated many.
is

To

working with the Board on

its

credit the Parking

this matter. In short, the

Task force has tried to find creative solutions and
Town has been active this year in many areas.

done without the dedicated service of our Town employees whose
town run so smoothly. Often we do not see the extra efforts made behind

All this progress could not be
diligent efforts

make

this

scenes by these people providing the

many

services

we have come

to expect..

the

We also appreciate the

many who volunteer their lime and expertise to help the Town. As a sign of the
we do not get many people at our meetings, we do hear from you through eand conversations, suggesting that many view our meetings on the Public Access Channel

active participation of

age

we

live in,

mails, letters
22.

We

although

encourage that as a form of active involvement with the Town, as well as joining a committee,

coaching a team or volunteering
decorating for Christmas.

The

to help with a project,

strength of this

Town

such as the beautification of the

lies in the fact that

so

many

William Campbell, Chairman

Lionel Ingram, Vice-Chairman

Paul Binette. Clerk

Joseph Pace

Board oj Selectmen
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Town

or

care and contribute.

Robert Eastman

TOWN MANAGER 'S REPORT
It seems best to start with thanking folks, and thanks are certainly in order. We all made it through
2004 with much success because we worked together to make it work. So first of all, thanks to all of
you reading this report for your ideas and encouragement on behalf of our wonderful Town. Thank
you Board of Selectmen for the direction and support you have given me through the year. Department heads and staff, thanks for all your hard work making me look good and getting the job done.

The year brought

a

number of changes

as the Bandstand, got a

new,

to the

new copper

to

how the Town

looks.

roof after 88 years; the

Town, Parks and Recreation bus

The Swasey Pavilion, better known
Pool saw a $100,000 renovation; a

Town

hit the road, Phillips

Exeter

Academy

installed the latest

walks on Court, Front and Water Streets and the Town traded in its all-purpose street sweeper for one that actually sweeps the streets. By way of making sure there is not too
much change in how the Town looks, the Open Space Committee was successful in protecting four
properties from development, this in line with the 2003 Town Meeting decision to raise and appropriate $3,000,000 for the ". .permanent protection of appropriate undeveloped land in the Town of
Exeter. ." and two historic barns were protected under a new program allowing owners to receive
in colored textured cross

.

.

property tax relief in return for preserving their barns.
In terms of personnel, the year

saw

the departure of

Ken

Quinto,

Highway Superintendent and the
Long time Town employee Jay

retirement of Fire Fighter John Piehler and Fire Captain Chris Soave.

Perkins was promoted to the

Highway Superintendent's

position.

As

always, the Town's various volunteer committees were busy throughout the year. In addition to

the

work of the Open Space Committee described above, the Planning Board worked on three more
- Transportation, Cultural and Historic Resources and Housing and

chapters of the Master Plan

Residential Life; the Parking Task Force (an Exeter Area

vided

new

insights

and recommendations

Development Commission continued
Exeter using some

fifty

its

for

changes

work on

a virtual tour of Exeter, a computerized visit to

360-degree photos. Look for

year also saw the formation of a

new committee,

providing the Board with advice in

all

Chamber of Commerce committee) prodowntown parking and the Exeter

to address

it

on the Town's web

site in early

2005. The

the Exeter River Study Committee, charged with

matters relating to the

management of the Exeter

Another busy year and every sign that 2005 will be just as busy. Lots
ready to help keep Exeter the wonderful community we all so enjoy.
Respectfully submitted,

George Olson

Town Manager
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to

be done and

River.

lots

of hands

ASSESSOR'S ANNUAL REPORT
I'his

new

past year the Assessing Office has been busy keeping up with Exeter's housing growth: several

subdivisions,

new

as well as processing

single family houses, commercial growth and hundreds of buildings permits,

hundreds of deed

transfers,

made

for an active year.

The 2004 computerized reassessment was successfully completed with land values and buildings
values increasing due to appreciation of maricet values in the sale of real estate

in

Exeter .This yearly

computerized value update will bring confidence to property owners that they are paying their
share of the tax burden, and that there

parity within Exeter's tax structure.

is

fair

Computerized updating

has resulted in a more stable relationship between real estate market sales and tax assessment values.

By updating

the values yearly, this process saves the

Town

hundreds of thousands of dollars by not

conducting a major revaluation.

2004 increased approximately $137 million to approximately $1.5 billion of
is attributed to $26 million in new building construction, and
approximately $111 million in market appreciation in all styles and types of property, namely single
family homes, mobile homes, condominiums, commercial, industrial, and land categories.
Exeter's tax base in

taxable value. This value increase

The Assessing
measure and

Office, along with the Vision Appraisal Co., completed the second third of a three year
project. Properties

list

were

field inspected,

with exterior measurements and interior

amenities checked for correct data. Although another third of the
clean up of the assessment records,

all

Town

has been inspected for data

taxable property will be revalued to market value as in the past

thirteen years.

The 2004 Town meeting approved increased
give additional relief to those

who meet

elderly exemption standards

the qualifications. Information

and the veterans

on tax

relief in the

credit to

form of the

Veterans Credit and the Elderly Exemption, along with Current Land Use and Intent to Cut Timber
applications and procedures are available in the Assessor's Office.

The Assessor and

office staff are always available to address any questions or concerns regarding

your property and encourage your participation

in the education

and imderstanding of the assessment

process.

As another year
their support

passes,

I

would

and understanding

like to
in

a busy and productive year in 2005.

Respectfully submitted.

John DeVittori,

Town

Assessor

CNHA

thank

my

fellow office employees and property owndrs for

running a successful assessment program.

I

am

looking forward to

2004

TAX RATE CALCULATION

— Town
Appropriations
Less:
Less;

Add:

Revenues
Shared Revenues
Overlay

War

Service Credits

Portion

—

Tax Rates

SUMMARY OF VALUATION (2004Assessed Valuation per MS-1)
Modifled Assessed Valuation Sl,476^06,864

Value of Land Only
Current Use Land
Discretionary Easement
Residential

Land

$

343,064

$

5,200

$ 342,303,000
79,523,600

Commercial/Industrial

$

Total Value of Land:

S 422,174,864

Disabled Exemption (27)

$

1.281,000

Blind Exemptions (7)

$

105,000

Elderly Exemption (252)

$ 24,765.600

Total Dollar Exemptions

$

26,151,600

Value of Buildings Only
Residential

$ 805,699,200

Manufactured Housing

$

Commercial/Industrial

$ 185.884,500

Net Taxable Valuation

$1,450,155,264

Net Valuation w/o utilities
on which tax rate for State
Education tax is computed:

$1,429,961,764

43,240,400

Discretionary Preserv. Easem't $

48,600

Total of Taxable Buildings SI, 034,872,700
Public Utilities

$ 20,193,510

CURRENT USE REPORT

Vaju alio n JBe fo re Exempt ion s

$1,477,241,064

Farm Land
Forest Land

2,

Unproductive Land

1,099 acres

392 acres
1

70 acres

School Dining/Dormitory,
Kitchen exemption

150,000

Total:

3,661 acres

(

63 parcels)

784,200

Certain Disabled Veterans

SOURCE OF TOWN REVENUES (from 2004 MS-4)
Taxes
Land Use Change Tax
Timber Tax
Payments in Lieu of Faxes
Int/Penalties-Delinquent

Licenses, Permits

&

Tx

$

4,500

Interfund Operating Transfers In

$

1,300

$

29,000

Sewer
Water

$

160,000

Trust

$1,614,623
$1,351,873

& Agency

Funds

445,150

Other Financing Sources

Fees

Motor Vehicle Permit Fees

$ 1 ,900,000

Building Permits

$

150,000

Other Licenses, Permits, Fees$

55,000

Proceeds from Long Term

Notes

&

Bonds

Sub-Total of Revenues:

From

$

$

$ 7,910,721

State

Shared Revenues

$

284,000

Rooms/Meals Tax Distribution
Highway Block Grant
Water Pollution Grants
Other (inc. Railroad Tax)

$

400.000

Charges for Services
Income from Departments

S

230.475

$

200.000

$

1,500

General Fund Balance
Unreserved Fund Balance
$2,802,783
Unreserved Fund Bal. -Retained $2,802,783
Unreserved Fund- Reduce Taxes

TOTAL REV/CREDITS:
Requested Overlay

$ 1 .000,000

Misc. Revenues
Interest

Sale of

on Investments

$

75,000

Town

$

8,300

Property

17

$

S 7,910,721
$

150,000

Property Schedule 2004
Property

Name

Property Schedule 2004
Property

Name

Vehicles
Year

Make

-

Mobile Equipment 2004

Vehicles
Year

Make

-

Mobile Equipment 2004

Vehicles
Year

Make

-

Mobile Equipment 2004

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Position

Title

Elected Officials
A

Binette, Paul

Campbell, William E

Eastman, Robert D
Ingram, Lionel R

W

Pace, Joseph

Selectman
Selectmen
Selectman
Selectman
Selectman

R

Brabant. Donald

Treasurer

Tucker, Charles F

Moderator

Parks, Sandra J

Trustee of Trust Funds

Elected Offlcials Total

Administration
Town Manager
Olson, George
Blenk, Barbara
Mitchell,

Benoit,

Town Manager/Tax

N
A

Carole A.

Sueanne

Part-time Welfare Director

Nash, Lynn A,

Dupes, Jamie S
Mass, Stephanie

M

Harbour, Shirley

A

Kenyon, Nathan

P.

Schaitman William R
Schaitman, Ken
Smith, Peter

A

Wilson, Betsy

Town

Collector

Admin Asst./Human Resource
Receptionist Town Office
Deputy Tax Collector
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV
Cable TV

Clerk

M

Hartson, Linda

Town

Clerk

Quinn, Eve M,

Duputy Town Clerk

Simpson, LeeAnn
Unger, Debra

Assistant

Bernard, Winifred L

Supervisor/Checklist

Town

Clerk

Part-time Assistant

Town

Duhamel, Margaret

Supervisor/Checklist

Toland, Joanne

Supervisor/Checklist

Susan C
Beck, Lynda K.
Brygider, Mary J
Campbell, Anne

Elections

Arnold,

Elections
Elections

M

Elections

Childs, William F

Elections

Cole, Brenda

Elections

L.

Cole, Richard

Elections

F.

Foss, Sarah A.

Elections

Gagne. Barbara

M

Elections

Gorskj, Irene

Elections

Greene, Norma A
Ingram, Katharine
Izzo,

Mary

Elections

M

Elections
Elections

Ellen

Izzo, Patricia

Elections

Kane. Frances

Elections

Kane, John

Elections

Leonard, Elizabeth
Lilienthal, Lois

A

H

Elections
Elections

Macomber, Harold
Makros, Jane
Markey, Alfred P

Elections

Marzinzik, Sara A.

Elections

Mazurka, Lois

M

Elections
Elections

Elections

Clerk

Dir

Wages

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name
Hill,

Position Title
Call Firefighter

Gerry

Call Firefighter

Mattin, Albert L.

McNicholas,

Meagan

Call Firefighter

Roy, Belinda

Call Firefighter

Weeks, Robin

Call Firefighter

Soave, Christopher

Call Clerk

Raymond, Wayne

Photographer

J.

Fire

Department Total

Department of Public Work
Administration
Noyes, Keith

Director

Perry, Jennifer R.

Town Engineer
Part-time Public Works/Planning Inspector

Hyland, Jeffrey R.

Joseph
Rogers, Grace B

Baillargeon,

Perkins,

Dawn

A.

Part-time Public Works/Planning Inspector
Officer

Manager (DPW)

Part-time Sec'y

(DPW)

Highway
Perkins, Jay

Highway Superintendent

Chamberlain, Gary

Laborer

Dow, Walter
Holmes, Ralph

Laborer

Shea, Bhan

Highway Foreman
Highway Foreman
General Foreman
Heavy Equipment Operator
Heavy Equipment Operator
Heavy Truck Driver
Heavy Truck Dnver
Heavy Equipment Operator
Heavy Equipment Operator

Therrien, Neil

Part-time Transfer Station Attendant

Javaruski, Paul

Lebeau, Scott
Mikolyski,

Ted

Morrow, Daniel
Ouimette, Richard
Pelchat, Joseph

Schultz.Mark

Maintenance
Smart, Kevin
Baptiste, William

Beck, Jeffrey
Bruce, Scott

Bugbee, Edward

Tom

Estes,

McAllister,
Norris,

George

Maurice

Pittman,

James

Yeaton, Paul

Maintenance Superintendent
Part-time Custodian Complex
Mechanic Foreman
Part-time Custodian Public Works
Maintenance Technician HVAC/Plumbing
Maintenance Technician Carpentry
Part-time Service Mechanic
Maintenance Technician Electrician
Mechanic
Part-time Custodian Town Office/Hall
I

Department of Public Work Total

Water - Sewer
DelGreco, Victoria

Barham, Ernest
Berube, Matthew
Boland,

James

Butler, Melvin

Calderone, Patrick
Colbert,

James

Public

Duffy, Phyllis

Fowler, Scott

R

Goss, Joseph
Hall, Justin

Lord,

Water /Sewer Superintendent
Treatment Plant Operator (Wastewater)
Water/Sewer Technician
Treatment Plant Operator (Wtr)
Senior Treatment Plant Operator (Wastewater)
Water Treatment Plant Senior Operator
Heavy Equipment/System Operator

Gary

McEvoy, Authur

Works Technician

Seasonal
Treatment Plant Operator (Wtr)
Water/Sewer Maintenance Technician

W/S

Distribution/Collection Technician

Water/Sewer Maintenance Technician

Wages

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Employees' Earnings Report for 2004
Name

Position

Hersey. Roderick E

Parks Foreman

Jordan, Robert E

Police Officer

Macmilllan. Ian

M

McCain, Timothy
Morrlssey,
Piehler,

Sean

Dispatcher
Police Officer

J

M

Call Firefighter

John

Firefighter

Quinto, Kenneth

Highway Superintendent

Rice, David

Part-time Dispatcher

Senter, Richard

Part-time Laborer

Soave, Christopher
St Cyr, Timothy J

Captaln-Fire/Emer.Mgmt

St. Pierre,

Wages

Title

Heavy Equipment Operator

Andrew

Thernen, Dame!

Thompson, William

Dir.

Dispatcher
Part-time Laborer

G

Labor Parks/Recreation
Left

Employment

Total

TOWN OF EXETER VENDOR TOTALS FOR 2004*
VENDOR NAME

CALENDAR PAID YTD

A SAFE PLACE
ABLE COACH CO

4,875
3,095

ACCUSOILS
AEROMIX SYSTEMS
AETHER SYSTEMS, INC
AFLAC
ALLIED OFFICE SUPPLIES
ALLTEX
ALPHA CARD SYSTEMS
TREASURER, STATE OF NH

9,605

4,005

4,136
12,808

4,810
17,507

6,110
4,858

AREA HOMECARE& FAMILY SVC
ARJAY ACE HARDWARE
ASSOCIATED CONCRETE COATINGS
ATLAS PYRO VISION PRODUCTIONS
RAYMOND E AND CAROL A BAGLIN
BANKNORTH, NA

16,250
17,924
31 ,307

4,000
174,662

124,349

BASIC CHEMICAL SOLUTIONS LLC
BELL & FLYNN INC.
BEN'S UNIFORMS INC.

3,953
183,365

5,960

BERGERON PROTECTIVE CLOTHING

7,263

BLENDED SOLUTIONS
BLUE RIBBON CLEANERS
BOLLINGER INSURANCE CO.
BORDEN REMINGTON
BOSTON RED SOX
BOSTON POPS ORCHESTRA
BOUNDTREE MEDICAL, LLC
BRADFORD SKI AREA, INC.
BROADWAY IN BOSTON
BROWN'S RIVER BINDERY, INC.
SAM BRUNO
DENNIS K BURKE
C&S SPECIALTY, INC
CALCIQUEST
LAURA LEE CALLAHAN
CAMP, DRESSER, & McKEE INC
CARTOGRAPHIC ASSOC, INC.
CHALMERS & KUBENK-NORTH
CHILD & FAMILY SERVICES
CIRCLE TRUST
CITIZENS BANK
CITIZENS BANK
CIVIL DESIGN ENGIN CONSULTANTS
ROBERT AND KAREN CLARKE
CLEAN HARBORS ENV SERVICE
TREASURER, STATE OF NH
COAST
COASTLINE WASTE SERVICE
COLLINS SPORTS CTR.
COLONIAL SUPPLEMENTAL INSUR.
COMMONWEALTH OF MASS

3,513
10,017
7,422
13,447

4,146
3,662

5,318
3,520

7,942
6,522
3,612
47,085

4,293
3,537
392,812
728,704

10,220
3,493

13,750

26,575
156,292

130,475
4,250
4,120
1 1

,495

44,825
17,585

98,640
8,664
7,273

4,200

*Only vendors with totals greater than $3,000 per Board of Selectmen meeting of 08/12/2002
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TOWN OF EXETER VENDOR TOTALS FOR
VENDOR NAME
THOMAS H CONNER
CONTROLLED IRRIGATION
CONVERSENT COMMUNICATIONS LLC
CONWAY OFFICE PRODUCTS, INC.
COTES AUTO BODY
COYNE CHEMICAL -NJ
CROCKER ARCHITECTURAL
CROSSROADS HOUSE, INC
DAIGNEAULT'S SPORT CENTER
J

WDARRAH

CALENDAR PAID YTD
47.289
3,487

34,454
3,211

4,343
15,855
18,288
3,500

4,669

LIMITED INC

48,788
9.927

DELL
PAUL AND LAUREN DERANIAN

3,067

DICTAPHONE
JAMES DOHERTY
DONAHUE TUCKER &CIANDELLA

6,739
6,300
5,003

REBECCA DONOVAN

5,070

DURELL ENTERPRISES
RICHARD EDMUNDS

69,017

ELLIOT HOSPITAL

16,250

EMERGENCY MEDICAL PRODUCTS
EMERGENCY VEHICLES OF MAINE
EMERGENCY ONE INC
ENGEL& ASSOC

7,994

INC

5,710
43,300
78,945
3,484

ENVIRONMENTAL INSTRUMENT SERV.
ENVIRONMENTAL ASSOCIATES.LTD
EQUINOX/COEH
EWING ELECTRICAL CO INC
TOWN OF EXETER
EXETER BRASS BAND
EXETER POLICE ASSOCIATION
EXETER PUBLIC LIBRARY
THE EXETER REGION CO-OP
EXETER SCHOOL DISTRICT
EXETER TAXI & LIMOUSINE
TOWN OF EXETER W/S

HOWARD

P.

2004*

8,567
5,584

3,284

14,124
13,380
3,500
5,61

150,608
10,998,677
7,954,231
1

5,224

10,286

FAIRFIELD INC.

4,097

FAIRVIEWMILLWORK

6,371

FERGUSON WATERWORKS

4,851

FIREMATIC SUPPLY CO, INC
FLEET BANK

17,138
5,826

FLYGARE.SCHWARZ & CLOSSON
FOXCROFT EQUIPMENT &SERUICE
GALLS INC
GBA MASTER SERIES
GEBETZ, INC
GEORGE GEORGIADIS

5,835
3,252
8,536

6.226
6,175

4,340

GMAC MTG. CORP

1

GOVCONNECTION INC
GRAHAM TIRE & AUTO
WW. GRAINGER

07,

1

86

10,741

3,490
7,611

THE GRANITE GROUP

7.656

•Only vendors with totals greater than $3,000 per Board of Selectmen meeting of 08/12/2002
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1

TOWN OF EXETER VENDOR TOTALS FOR 2004*
VENDOR NAME

CALENDAR PAID YTD

GRANITE INDUSTRIAL GASES INC

6,352

GZAGEOENVIRONMENTAL, INC
HACH COMPANY
WARREN AND SUSAN HANSON
HARCROSS CHEMICAL, INC
HAVERHILL STEEL & SALVAGE
J M HAYDEN EQUIPMENT CO
R.C. HAZELTON CO. INC.
LGC HEALTHTRUST
HIGH SPEED COMMUNICATION, INC
HOLLAND CO., INC.
HOME DEPOT

18,959
5,587
192,241

4,142
1 1

8,329
1,831,897

9,165
27,126

6,155

IMC
ING LIFE INSURANCE

10,400

AND ANNUITY
INTERWARE DEVELOPEMENT CO.INC.
JOHN IRISH
IRWIN MOTORS, INC
JAWORSKI GEOTECH
JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INC
KEY GOVERNMENT FINANCE, INC.
KNIGHT HILL LAND SURVEYING SER
LAMPREY HEALTH CARE
ROBERT LEATHERBEE
LEIGHTONS CYCLE
LOCAL GOVERNMENT CENTER

94,055
4,382
6,003

46,718
15,899
7,066

18,277
5,675

5,800
3,584
9,730
19,024

LGC-PLT, LLC

LHS ASSOC,

,475

7,747

144,443
INC.

11,011

KEVIN AND RAQUEN LIBBSON
LIBERTY INTER. TRUCKS INC.

3,343

SHARON LIPORTO
KEVIN AND RAOUEL LiPPSON

8,085

3.397
3,343
15,602

M&L PAINTING
THE MAHER IRRIGATION, LLC
MARKINGS INC.

5,000

MCFARLAND FORD SALES, INC.
RICHIE MCFARLAND CENTER
MEDTRONIC PHYSIO CONTROL
MARSHAL MILLER LOCKSMITH
EDWARD AND TRACY MOORADIAN
LYNN D MORSE, ESQ

6,383

3,169

6,000
4,877
3,189
4,71

36,200

MORTON SALT
MOTOROLA

23,034
6,458

NATIONAL CITY MORTGAGE
NES TRAFFIC SAFETY
NEW ENGLAND BARRICADE
NH RETIREMENT SYSTEM
NH TRACTOR & EQUIPMENT CO

3,933

6,305
3,908

649,954
14,200

NEWPORT CONSTRUCTION CO

7,940

NEXTEL
NH DEPT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN
TREASURER, STATE OF NH

5,149

21,107

329,660

*Only vendors with totals greater than $3,000 per Board of Selectmen meeting of 08/12/2002
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TOWN OF EXETER VENDOR TOTALS FOR 2004*
VENDOR NAME
NNEPRA
NORTHEAST CREDIT UNION
NORTHERN POOLS. SPA
NORTHERN DATA SYSTEMS
NORTHERN UTILITIES, INC.
KEITH NOYES
OLD TOWN TROLLEY TOUR

CALENDAR PAID YTD

OSSIPEE MT. ELECTRONICS

4,959

35,605
7,759
16,506

36,564
86,980
3,004
3,182

PACETTI CORPORATION
PIERCE ATWOOD
PIKE INDUSTRIES, INC.
RALPH PILL ELECTRIC SUPPLY
PLATINUM PLUS FOR BUSINESS
PLAY SOCCER
PLODZIK & SANDERSON

11,752
15,916

18,819
3,222
6.971

4,842
16,000

PRIMEX WORKERS COMP. DIV.
RAMEY CONTRACTOR -ENGINEERS
RECREATION SUPPLY COMPANY

125,294

/

120,128
5,906
45,548
6,536
3,260
3,112
4,552
4,567
3,500
12,000
18,075
6,500
18,745
19,944
13,108

RESOURCEFUL BAG & TAG, INC
RESOURSE LABORATORIES INC
RETIRED SENIOR VOLUNTEER PROG.
D F RICHARDS ENERGY GROUP
RILEY'S SPORT SHOP INC
ROBERT ROCHE
ROCKINGHAM APPRAISAL SERVICE
ROCKINGHAM COMMUNITY ACTION
ROCK.COUNTY CONSERVATION DIST.
ROCKINGHAM NUTRITION
ROCKINGHAM PLANNING COMMISSION
ROCKINGHAM VISITING NURSE
ROME CONSTRUCTION
R AND R COMMUNICATIONS

3,672

SAM'S CLUB #6337

4,887

SANCHIN SYSTEMS INC
SANEL AUTO PARTS CO.
SCARPONI ELECTRIC, LLC
SEA CARE HEALTH SERVICES
SEACOAST BUSINESS MACHINE

3,272

24,288
20,718
5,000
7,438

SEACOAST EMERGENCY RESPONSE
SEACOAST ANALYTICAL
SEACOAST BIG BROTHER/
SEACOAST CHIEF FIRE
SEACOAST CREDIT UNION
SEACOAST HOSPICE
SEACOAST MENTAL HEALTH
SEACOAST NEWSPAPERS
SEA CONSULTANTS, INC.
SEXUAL ASSAULT SUPPORT SERVICE
SHERWIN WILLIAMS
SHOW OF THE MONTH CLUB
SIGNS OF THE TIMES

5,000
3,502

11,310
3,487

11,595
7,500

10,500
8,680

45,346
3,125

4,978
5,544

3,575

•Only vendors with totals greater than $3,000 per Board of Selectmen meeting of 08/12/2002
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Answer

Our Town. The first 3 residents with the correct answers
Swasey Bandstand medallion ($10.00 value) compliments of Barbara Blenk.

the following questions regarding

will receive a 2-inch

1

.

The year Exeter was founded?

2.

Who

3.

How many pieces of children's equipment are

4.

Who

5.

What

6.

With what

7.

What

8.

What used

9.

What

10.

1

1.

12.

13.

referenced on the sign in front of the

is

designed the statue

is

is

the

Park

St.

"^

Common playground area?

Gale Park?

does Chadwick Lane intersect?

name of the
to operate

oldest building

@ Exeter High School?_

from the present Exeter Historical Society building?

organizations have their signs on the fraternal signboard, Epping

what other sign

enter

town from

Who

wrote the "History of Exeter 1888-1988" book?

How many

Name

the west, and

the

Town

15.

The roof on

Road

as

you

there?

Town

Hall?

Hall built?

one place you see an 'Exeter Historic

Who

is

'portholes' are positions around the top of the cupola at the

What year was

14.

District' sign.

sponsors the 'bus stop' signs located around town?
the

Bandstand was recently replaced.

Once complete, pass along

NH

at

Office building

name of the new Town Manager?

street

the

at

Town

03833

(or drop

it

to the

Selectmen's Office

by the Reception Desk,

Town

34

How old

(attn:

was

the old roof?

Barbara Blenk), 10 Front

Office building, 10 Front

St.)

Street,

Exeter

Q

ROBINSON FUND
The Robinson Fund is a charitable trust for the benefit of the Town of Exeter whose citizens elect
its seven members. The funds were given in trust to the Town in 1853 by the will of William Robinson, a native of Exeter who attended Phillips Exeter Academy and for whose sister there existed no
similar educational facility in the area. The will specified that the funds be for "the only and sole
instruction of females.

orphan." In September

from the Exeter

From 1869

.

.all
1

other things being equal, always to give preference to the poor and the

869 the newly

Robinson Female Seminary opened

built

its

doors to females

area.

until 1955,

Robinson Seminary was the only public school

in

Exeter to serve post-

elementary females (males attended the Tuck High School). In 1954 the School District passed a
bond issue to build an addition to the Tuck School. The first co-educational class graduated from
Exeter High School in 1956-

A

fire in

1961 destroyed the Seminary building. The Lincoln Street

Elementary School and related playgrounds

now occupy

the

site.

Four of the current Robinson Fund Trustees attended the Seminary; three are graduates and the foiuth
is a graduate of the then new co-ed High School.

managed both the school and the funds. But by the 1940's, the income
from the Trust proved inadequate and the School District began assuming the deficit. In 1940 the
Exeter School District formally assumed control of the Seminary. Only the trust funds remained
under the direction of the Trustees.
In the begirming, the Trustees

In order to institute a co-educational system, the
ture.

Town had

to get

permission from the State Legisla-

That body referred the matter to Judge Elwin Page. His 1947 Master's Report stated that Mr.

Robinson's wishes could be met by using Trust income to pay pro-rated teacher salaries of co-ed or
female only classes.

on the basis of gender, the Trustees went to the County
996 the court issued a new decree that discontinued the existing income distribution and established a new Trust purpose: ". .to create a fund to provide opportunities to enrich and
enhance the educational experience of post-elementary age individuals within the area served by the
Exeter Region Cooperative School District, through the development of programs, scholarships and
grants." Following this new decree Trustees awarded the first Robinson Fund Scholarships to graduating seniors of the Exeter Region Cooperative School District in June 1998.
In the early 1990's, to avoid discrimination

Probate Court. In

1

.

May 2004, the Robinson Scholarship Fund awarded $1,750 (per semester) scholarships to Samuel
Fellows and Gillian Goldman, and $500 to Timothy Rezendes. Re-applicants received the following
In

awards, per semester: Emily Rodrigues, $3,500; Justin Rivlin, $1,000; Brian Nolan, $3,000, and
Chris Collier, $3,000.
Additionally, Trustees approved the final installment of a two-part grant, $3,875 to Exeter High

School teacher Ginny VanHazinga,

who

is

writing an advanced mathematics textbook.

several special fiands donated by friends and Seminary alumnae. Income
awarded annually. Last year the awards were: $500 to Lillian Goldman from the
Robinson Fund Alumnae, and $1,000 to Katherine Steere from RFS Memorial Gifts.

The Trustees

manage

also

from these funds

is

36

Respectfully,

Harry Thayer, Secretary

The Robinson Fund Trustees
Peter Smith, President

Joanna Pellerin. Vice President
Patricia Qualter, Treasurer

Margaret Duhamcl

Martha Penned
Barbara Gagne

REPORT OF THE TRUSTEES OF THE ROBINSON FUND
YEAR ENDING 12/31/04

INCOME
Income on Hand
Dividends

&

Interest

$93,144.00
Received

$ 50.891 .00

TOTAL INCOME:

$144,035.00

ALLOCATION FROM INCOME
Grants

&

$ 58,003.00

Scholarships

224.00

Attorney's Fees

$

Secretary's Expenses

$

344.00

Miscellaneous

$

965.00

Fees

$11,149.00

TOTAL ALLOCATION FROM INCOME
Balance of Income on

PRINCIPAL

Hand

MARKET VALUE

$ 70.685.00

$ 73350.00

12/31/04:

12/31/04

Stocks

$726,042.00

Bonds
Cash & Equivalents

$ 1 00.478.00

$595,199.00

TOTAL PRINCIPAL MARKET VALUE

37

12/31/04

$1,421,719.00

TOWN CLERK'S REPORT
now December and

me

of 2004 is just about over. Our busy year began with the
where the voter turnout was 42%. We no sooner finished up the paperwork, on that election, and it was time for the Deliberative Session to review the Town warrant for the March
elections. The March elections had 22.5% voter participation. The next election was the September State
Primary and, although the number of registered voters on the checklist had increased, voter participation was
17%. This election year ended with the November General Election and the number of registered voters on the
checklist once again increased, with over 820 residents registering to vote on election day. The voter turnout
was 80% for the Town of Exeter!
It is

hard for

to believe the year

Presidential Primary election in January

1

thank Exeter's Checklist Supervisors, Margaret "Peg" Duhamel, Winifred "Fritzi" Bernard, and Joanne Toiand

for the

MANY hours they spent in our office updating and correcting the voter checklist so the integrity of our

voters could be maintained.

It is

a time-consuming and tedious job, but their efforts are appreciated and each

more smoothly because of their assistance. also applaude and thank the many residents who
the polls each election. The days were very long, and sometimes the working conditions were

election ran

worked

at

I

uncomfortable, but the workers never complained and returned to help us at each election. These are dedicated
Exeter residents and they

all

deserve our appreciation.

concerned with them are not the only duties of the Town Clerk's Office. Our
- 3 full-time and part-time. We processed over 19,000 motor vehicle
transactions; issued over 6,800 certified copies of birth, marriage and death certificates; issued over 100

many

Elections and the

details

office staff consists of 4 people

1

marriage licenses; licensed over 1,800 dogs; and answered an innumerable number of telephone
again

we had

the pleasure of meeting

many proud new

calls.

Once

parents and their infants, watching excited couples file

and welcomed new residents to our community. Although most of our duties are regulated by State
Town Ordinances and are more or less routine, it is the variety of residents' requests
and questions that make our jobs interesting. No two days are ever the same!
for marriage

and/or Federal laws and

Below

are

some

statistics that

Vehicle registrations

1994=13,675
1999=15,179
2004=19.604
It is

a pleasure for

me

may

be of interest to Exeter residents:

Dogs Licensed
1994=1,104
1999=1,575
2004=1,851
to recognize

my

Certified Vital Records

Total

1994 = 3,442

Town Revenue

1999 = 5,275
2004 = 6,856

2004= $2,173,653

co-workers. Eve Quinn, Debra Unger, and

continued support, positive attitudes, and willingness to assist our customers

manner.

1

believe

we have

that special place to live

Once again

thank the members of the Board of Selectmen, the

I

residents of this

for their continued support

community

for

LeeAnn Simpson,

for their

an efficient and knowledgeable

work with

Town Manager, Department Managers and

and assistance during

your continued. Exeter

here and have the opportunity to

is

the residents.

Respectfully submitted,

Linda Hartson Macomber,

in

a "team" that works to provide our citizens with the quality of service that helps to

make Exeter

Town employees

Collected

1994= $1,157,383
1999= $1,731,071

CMC
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a

Town

this past year.

to

be proud

of.

My special
I

am

all

thanks to the

very happy that

I

live

EXETER POLICE DEPARTMENT
CRIME ANALYSIS REPORT YEAR TO DATE

OFFENSES BY YEAR TO DATE

THE MISSION STATEMENT
OF THE
EXETER POLICE DEPARTMENT

the Exeter Police Department, exist to serve and protect

We,

and with compassion, without prejudice.

fairness,

work, and enjoy

We,

the

we

do

this to

ail

people within our jurisdiction with respect, with

ensure a safe, healthy environment

in

which

to reside,

life.

men and women of the

QUALITY SERVICES- We
accordingly;

We

work

Exeter Police Department, value:

to anticipate

COOPERATION- We

we

actively seek and encourage

opinions, and joint actions.

We

we

and prevent problems;

and

will seek innovative solutions;

will

will listen to concerns

and respond

respond to issues with fairness, sensitivity and compassion.

community involvement in all aspects of policing by way of ideas,
when actions are taken collectively rather than

recognize that more can be accomplished

individually.

PROFESSIONALISM- Our
shall: individually

personal standard for conduct shall be viewed as exemplary to others.

and collectively promote self discipline, take pride

in

To achieve

this

we

our accomplishments, recruit and hire the best

people, and train, educate and develop our employees to their highest potential.

COMPETENCE- We

assure the tasks set forth will be accomplished

We encourage

be accountable for our actions.

and correct behavior which

is

in

the

most effective and

efficient

manner.

reasonable risk-taking and are tolerant of honest mistakes,

we

We will

will address

contrary to the primary mission of this agency, and will recognize and reward good

performance.

INTEGRITY- We

are honest

and

truthful

and

will hold ourselves to a higher standard

We

of moral and ethical conduct.

value the reputation of this agency and will collectively act to prevent abuses of the law and violations of civil rights.

We will

continuously pursue these ideals

in all

of our actions to ensure

that

we

will maintain the

primary mission of this

agency being: "Committed To The Community".

The Exeter Police Department experienced a very busy year in 2004. The poUce department started
off the year with two armed robberies and a bank robbery, all in a five-day time frame. I am pleased
to report that theses cases resulted in the arrest of all of the individuals involved. Due to the diligence
of the officers investigating the case, the individuals are currently incarcerated for the crimes that
were committed.

The Department
laws.

is

tasked with the responsibility of enforcing a variety of State, Federal and local

Some of these

responsibilities include: the enforcement of

motor vehicle laws, the

investi-

gation and reduction of motor vehicle accidents, the investigation of illegal drug activity, juvenile

crime and computer related crimes. In
vehicles by year's end.
service.

This

is

town continues

total, the officers will

The department

an increase over
to experience.

last

will also

have stopped more than 10,000 motor

have responded to approximately 23,000

calls for

year and will continue to increase with the steady growth the

The Detective

division continues to be proactive and diligent in

continual effort of deterring and reacting to any serious crime in town.
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Along with

its

the issues that

I

mentioned,

we

continue to experience crimes of sexual assaults, arsons, burglaries, thefts, and

all

other criminal reports.

The Department is supported by a number of civilian employees who work in the areas of
Communication, Clerical, Prosecution, Parking Enforcement and Animal Control.

As

a department

> The

we

outlined goals to accomplished in 2004:

reduction of crime and the safety of the citizenry continue to be our

number one

priority.

> We enhanced

the security safety of the public safety complex by installing security
cameras throughout the entire complex. This was done through a grant from the

Federal Government for homeland security.

>

number

Aggressively enforcing motor vehicle violations and complaints to reduce the

of

accidents and speeding complaints.

> Applied for and received several Federal/State grants totaling in excess of S 19,000.
> Conducted a community survey on the performance of the Exeter Police Department.
1

As

a department

we have

> Continue

to

identified the following goals for 2005:

ensure that the citizens of the

Town

of Exeter live and

work

in a safe

community.

>
>
>
>

Replace the radio system for our laptop computers that was installed thirteen years ago.
Recruit the best officers possible for the department.
Provide the best training available for our employees.
Continue to support the Police Explorer Post which helps to develop young people in
their pursuit of careers in Law Enforcement.
Increase the quality of service and customer satisfaction town wide.

>

Special thanks as always goes to the Board of Selectman, the

members of the Budget Committee, Department Heads and

A

George Olson

special thanks to Mr.

for his years

of dedicated service to the

has been of great assistance to the police department and to
to offer his thoughts

wishes him well
Finally,

I

would

and insights into any issue

Town Manager George

that arose.

Olson, the

the citizens of Exeter for their support.

me

The

personally.

Town Of Exeter. He

He was always

entire Exeter Police

available

Department

in his retirement.

like to

thank the

men and women of the

Exeter Police Department

recognition for their continued dedication and professionalism they

show on

who

deserve

a day-to-day basis.

These people continually rise to the challenges we face and I want to acknowledge their significant
contributions.
would also like to thank the other Town Departments for the partnerships we
mutually enjoy, which assist us in better serving the citizens in fown. All of us want to recognize and
thank the citizens themselves for making Exeter a place in which we are proud to li\e. work and
I

enjoy

life.

Respectfully Submitted:

Chief Richard Kane, Exeter Police Department
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
with great satisfaction that

It is

started this position in

was

1985

enthusiastic, excited,

challenge that

accepted

my

it

I

I

little

20'*^

more

I

and

little

my new job

me worked
I

for

less

around the waist

don't think

I

I

line.

When

I

Although

my

am proud

of the Department's

I

fully appreciated the

Town Manager George Olson who
me when I needed

to correct

me

grateful.

annual report to the citizens of Exeter.

hair

and confident about

be. Fortunately for

am most

made them

my

submit

had a

weaknesses, helped

most, of which
staff that

would

I

mistakes and encouraged

many accomplishments and

it

the

possible.

Our Office Support Team

led by Grace Rogers continues to provide excellent customer service to our
community. Although it is impossible to satisfy everyone they do their best to
respond to phone calls and follow up to make sure that problems and issues are resolved to the best of
their ability. The office is the hub of the Department which supports all other operations.

residents and business

The Engineering Team headed by Town Engineer Jennifer Perry continues
reviewing and critiquing the

many new

projects and developments that

to

come

keep very busy
before them through the

at the forefront of complying with Federal Stormwater
good because this work has a direct impact on preventing
of our rivers and streams.

Planning Department. In addition, they are
regulations and requirements. This

pollution and ensuring the quality

is

now being led by Department veteran Jay Perkins. Jay comes on board at the
of practical and on the job experience. I am impressed with his enthusiasm,
interest, and energy that he brings with him. Although this year we had to operate with a number of
hefty cuts because of the default budget, the team kept very busy and productive. Improvements to
The Highway Team

is

right time with years

the Transfer Station and
staff that benefits us

Water and Main

Streets Intersection are noticeable projects completed

by the

all.

The Maintenance Team managed by Kevin Smart continues

keep the Town's municipal buildings
Our team of maintenance technicians

to

well maintained and vehicles and equipment running reliably.

accomplished many important building repairs and alterations that save the Town money by doing
in house personnel. Similarly our mechanics do the majority of preventive maintenance
and repair work in house at a reduced cost.

them with

The Water and Sewer team

led

right
fair

and ensure

that the

and reasonable

Town Meeting we

cost.

to focus on preparing to build a new
The amount of work involved is enormous to do it

by Victoria Del Greco continues

water treatment plant and river pumping

station.

end result is a reliable and efficient water treatment plant constructed at a
Although the warrant article for construction funds lost by a low margin at

are optimistic that by doing a better job of explaining the reasons a

new plant

is

essential our citizens will support the project in 2005.

I

would

like to

thank the Board of Selectmen,

Town Manger, Water and Sewer

fellow Department Heads, and the entire Public

Works

contributions throughout the year.

Respectfully submitted,

Keith R. Noyes, Director
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Advisory Committee,
and

staff for their assistance, guidance,

Screening gravel

at

Town

Pit (Kingston

Road)

Household Hazardous Waste Day, October, 2004
Public Works Complex, Newfields Road
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EXETER FIRE DEPARTMENT
to a close, the members of the Exeter Fire Department are working hard
meet the ever-growing needs of the citizens of Exeter. As in the past few years, new
construction and the quickly growing population arc placing unique demands on our

As 2004 comes

to

resources.

To meet

these needs

we

will

be graduating two Firefighters from paramedic training

allowing the department to provide a paramedic level service 24 hours a 7 days a week.

Today we provide one of the highest levels of service in the state. And, thanks to the
Ambulance Charter, the fire department will return $221,751 .00 to the general fund.

We

will also be asking to replace

warrant. This replacement

is

one of our oldest ambulances as part of this year's

crucial to us maintaining our high standard of patient care.

Also on the warrant will be a request to purchase land on Epping road for the purpose of
building a second fire station sometime in the future. This six-acre lot will be an ideal
location and will greatly

improve response times

to a larger area

of town.

We ask

for

your support.

would like to thank Captain Christopher Soave for his dedicated 23 years of
community and for all of his hard work, helping to shape this department
one of the most respected fire departments in the state.

In closing,

I

service to the
into

1

would also

like to take this opportunity to

thank the

Town Manger George Olson

of his wisdom and support and the Board of Selectmen

for their support

for all

of this depart-

ment's mission.

To

the

members of this department: thank you

hard work.

Proud

to serve.

Brian

Comeau

Chief of Department
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for

your dedication, professionalism and

RIVER STUDY COMMITTEE
The Board of Selectmen formed the Exeter River Study Committee to oversee all matters relating to
management of the Exeter River and its watershed and to advise the board. The Committee
membership consists of town citizens, members of Town boards and departments involved with
water issues and representatives of local activities having a direct interest in the management of the
the

River.

As

the

first

order of business, the Committee has begun to study

effectively monitor

The Committee

>

how the Town might more

in Exeter.

also:

Overseeing the Town's on-going effort to obtain a water quality certification from the

which

>

is

and reduce flooding

is

required for the

new water

State,

treatment plant.

Reviewing the Town's water resource chapter of the Master Plan for possible recommendaA specific area that has arisen from this review is the need for better

tions to the Selectmen.

education of the public about water management matters.

>

Considering the opportunity for the Exeter River to become one the State's river management
pilot projects.

As

part of

its

own

education, the Committee has discussed issues with several guest speakers,

including the Exeter River Advisory Committee,
the

FEMA,

the

NH Office of Energy and Planning and

NH Department of Fish and Game.

Respectfiilly submitted.

Lionel Ingram, Chairman (Selectmen's Rep)
Victoria DelGreco

Brian

(W/S Supt)

Dennis Derby (Planning Bd. rep)
Neal Therrien
Robert Kelly (W/S Advisory

Comeau

Jennifer Perry

(Fire Chief)

(Town Engineer)

Christopher Moutis

Rod Bourdon
Don Clement (Conservation Comm)

Comm)
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.

We have

Winners!!!

Three area residents correctly identified the locations of the ten snapshots in the 2003 Town Report
(page 48). The winners were: Arthur Baillargeon, Nick Chantre and Ray Morin. Each person won a
"Town of Exeter" pin, compliments of Barbara Blenk, Administrative Assistant/H.R. Director.

The locations (where and what they are) are as follows:
River Walk, from String Bridge, along the Squamscott
1
Swasey Parkway new street light
2.
3.
Town seal on Town Hall steps
Congregational Church from Town House Common
4.
5.

Kids bike

6.

Face

7.

(ride)

@ Kids Park (Front/Winter Streets)

brook wall, Swasey Parkway
Seacoast Hospice sign on Hampton Road
in

9.

Monument at Founders' Park (through "V" at top. Lady Justice is seen at
Town Sign on Hampton Road (just east of E & H Mobile Home Village)

10.

Sign on oldest building

8.

at

Water Treatment Plant (by Reservoir)

the

Town

Hall

WARRANTS
&

BUDGETS
TOWN WARRANT & BUDGET FOR 2005
TOWN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Audit for the
[Please note: Warrant

&

fiscal

year ending December 3

budget include any changes made

at

1 ,

2003)

February

5'*'

Deliberative Session]

SCHOOL WARRANTS & BUDGETS - 2005
SCHOOL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(For the Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2004)
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Articles

amended

@ Deliberative Session 2/05/05:

Articles 17, 22, 26, 27, 41, 46, 47, 48

TOWN WARRANT- 2005
To the inhabitants of the Town of Exeter, in the County of Rockingham, in said State, qualified to vote on
Town affairs: You are hereby notified to meet at the Town Hall, Front Street in said Exeter on Saturday,
February 5, 2005 at 9:00AM for the purpose of transacting all business other than voting by official ballot

March

and. thereafter, to meet on Tuesday,
Hall, to elect officers, vote

on zoning

2005 between 7:00AM and 8:00PM at the Exeter Town
and to vote on all warrant articles from the first session by

8,

articles

official ballot.
1
To choose the following: Town Clerk for a 3-year term: Treasurer for a 3-year term; 2
Selectmen for 3-year terms; 3 Library Trustees for 3-year terms; Trustee of the Trust Funds for a 3-

Article

1

:

1

1

year term;
Article 2:

1

Trustee of the Robinson Fund for a 7-year term;l Swasey Park Trustee for a 3-year term.

Zoning Amendment #1: Are you

by the Planning Board

Amend

for the

Article 3, Section 3.2

Town Zoning

Zoning

Map

of the adoption of Amendment #1 as proposed

in favor

Ordinance as follows:

by expanding the current R-4 zoning

district

on Epping Road and

rezone the back or rear portions of the following parcels from C-2 Highway Commercial to R-4 Multi-Family:
parcels: #63 -101, 63 -100, 55 -75, 55 -76, #55 - 3, 55-6; also rezone the rear portion of Tax Map
pared #54 -2 currently zoned Industrial to R-4 Multi-Family? (See map included) Amend Article 4.2 Permitted Uses, Schedule I by adding "Access to the R-4 Multi-Family district" as a permitted use in the C-2

Tax Map

(Highway Commercial) zoning
Article 3: Zoning

district?

Amendment #2: Are you in favor of the adoption
for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

of Amendment #2 as proposed

by the Plaiming Board

Amend

Article 4, Section 4.3 Schedule

#20 applicable
flood plain and

to R-4,

50%

Density

II:

R-5 and R-6 zoning

& Dimensional

Regulations - Residential, by adding Note

districts to read as follows:

of the areas defined as jurisdictional wetlands

"None of the area within

may be used

to satisfy

the 100 year

minimum

lot

area

requirements for multi-family uses. Regulations regarding perimeter buffers (see Site Plan Review and

Subdivision Regulation 9.6.1.2) shall apply."? (Reference to

Water

&

this

note shall be inserted under "Municipal

Sewer" within the "Minimum Lot Area" category)

Article 4: Zoning

Amendment #3: Are you in favor of the adoption
for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

of Amendment #3 as proposed

by the Planning Board

Amend

Article 4, Section 4.3 Schedule

allowable height

in the

RU

district

11:

Density

from 50

unit" so that the note reads: "Buildings

&

Dimensional Regulations - Residential, by changing the

feet to 35 feet

may have

a

and amend Note #18 by removing the phrase "Multi-

maximum

height of 50 feet

if a special

exception

is

granted

by the ZBA."?

Article 5:

Zoning Amendment #4: Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment #4
Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

as proposed

by the Planning Board for the

Amend

Article 4, Section 4.3 Schedule

adding Note #19
shall state:

in the

minimum

lot

11:

Density

& Dimensional

- Residential, by
and Rl zoning districts. Note 19
of record having a total combined area of

area columns for both the

"For proposed subdivisions of an existing

48

lot(s)

RU

Regulations

ARTICLE 2: ZONING AMENDMENT #1

o
?4
CD

O
o
II

o

(A

Articles

20 or greater

amended @

acres,

Deliberative Session 2/05/05: Articles 17, 22, 26, 27, 41, 46, 47, 48

open space development pursuant

to Article 7 is required unless

waived by

the

Exeter Planning Board." ?
Article 6:

Zoning Amendment #5: Are you in favor of the adoption of Amendment #5
for the Town Zoning Ordinance as follows:

as proposed

by the Planning Board

Amend

Article 6, Section 6.10.3 -

of the existing section
the

combined gross

Home

Occupations - "Extent of Use" by revising the

first

sentence

"Does not utilize more than twenty-five percent (25%) of
area of the dwelling unit and accessory structures located on the premise,

to read as follows:

floor

except foster family care."?
Article 7:

Zoning Amendment #6: Are you

by the Planning Board

Amend

for the

in favor

of the adoption of Amendment #6 as proposed

Town Zoning Ordinance

as follows:

Article 7, Section 7.6.1 Small Scale Multi-Family

Sections

A and B

A. The

Open Space Development by

revising

as follows:

minimum

area for a small scale multi-family open space development shall not be less

than five (5) acres of contiguous land and not more than 24.9 acres of contiguous land.

Density calculations for small-scale multi-family open space development shall be in
accordance with Article 7.7.1 Density and Section 7.13 Yield Plan of the Site Plan Review

B.

and Subdivision Regulations. Small scale muUi-family open space development permits
up to five (5) attached* dwelling units per structure. On parcels
proposed for development that are less than ten (10) acres in size, no more than three (3)
attached dwelling units per structure are allowed. The planning board may allow additional
the planned grouping of

dwelling units per structure for the purpose of conserving additional open space.
Regulations regarding perimeter buffers (see Site Plan Review and Subdivision Regulation
9.6.1.2) shall apply.?

Zoning Amendment #7: Are you

Article 8:

by the Planning Board for the

Amend

Town Zoning

in favor of the adoption of Amendment #7 as proposed
Ordinance as follows:

Section 7.6.2 Large Scale Multi-Family

Open Space Development by

revising Section

C

as

follows:

C. Density calculations for large-scale multi-family open space development shall be in

accordance with Article

7.7.1.

Density and Section 7.13 Yield Plan of the Site Plan Review

A

open space development permits
and
a maximum of twelve (12) multi-family dwelling units per structure. The planning board
may allow additional dwelling units per structure for the purpose of conserving additional
open space. Regulations regarding perimeter buffers (see Site Plan Review and

and Subdivision Regulations.
the planned grouping of a

large scale multi-family

minimum of six

(6) multi-family dwelling units per structure

Subdivision Regulation 9.6.1.2) shall apply.?

SO

Articles

Article 9:

amended @ Deliberative Session

Zoning Amendment

by the Planning Board for the

Amend

#8: Are

in favor of the adoption of Amendment #8 as proposed
Ordinance as follows:

Open Space and Common Areas by

after the first sentence in this section:

48

you

Town Zoning

Article 7, Section 7.7.3

2/05/05: Articles 17, 22, 26, 27, 41, 46, 47,

inserting the following sentence

"Reasonable efforts must be made

to locate

common open

space adjacent to protected open space in adjoining property or properties to the satisfaction of the

Planning Board."?
Article 10:

Zoning Amendment #9: Are you

by the Planning Board for the

Amend
the

Town Zoning

Article 9, Section 9.4.2

-

in favor of the adoption of Amendment #9 as proposed
Ordinance as follows:

Floodplain Development Ordinance, by updating the reference to

FEMA maps and revising present language as follows:

ordinance shall apply to

all

"The following regulations

in this

lands designated as special flood hazard areas by the Federal

Emergency

"Flood Insurance Study for the County of Rockingham, NH"
dated May 17, 2005, together with the associated Flood Insurance Rate Maps dated May 17, 2005,
which are declared to be a part of this ordinance and are hereby incorporated by reference.?

Management Agency (FEMA)

To choose

Article 11:

all

in its

other necessary

Town

Officers, Auditors or

Committees

for the ensuing

year.

Article 12:

To

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate the sum of $17,100,000 for the

purpose of constructing a new water treatment plant off Holland Way and associated facilities, by the
issuance of bonds and notes in accordance with the provisions of the Municipal Finance Act (NH
RSA Chapter 33), with the understanding that $600,000 of this amount will be paid from a grant from

Government and to authorize the selectmen to issue and negotiate such bonds and notes
and to determine the rate of interest thereon, with all expenses to be paid from rate payer fees. (The
Board of Selectmen recommends this appropriation.)

the Federal

Article 13: Shall the

Town of Exeter raise

and appropriate as an operating budget, not including

appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts set
forth

on the budget posted with the warrant or as amended by vote of the

purposes
shall

set forth therein,

totahng $15,760,121? Should

be $15,052,819, which

action of the

is

the

Town of Exeter or

accordance with

RSA 40:13, X

same

this article

first

session, for the

be defeated, the operating budget

as last year, with certain adjustments required

by previous

by law, or the governing body may hold one special meeting, in
and XVI, to take up the issue of a revised operating budget only. (The

Board of Selectmen recommends

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $170,000 to supplement line item "2582-Coniracted Paving", as shown in the Town's
operating budget, for the purpose of rebuilding and/or paving Town streets and roads. (The Board of
Article 14:

Selectmen recommends

this appropriation.)

51

Articles

amended @

Deliberative Session 2/05/05: Articles

Town

1 7, 22,

26, 27,41, 46, 47,

48

and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
Article 15: To see if the
sum of $140,000 for the purpose of repairing exterior brick and brownstone at the Town Hall. (Three
of the

will vote to raise

members of the Board of Selectmen recommend

five

Article 16:

To

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

this appropriation.)

and appropriate $192,41

5

from the general fund

to

Ambulance Expendable Trust Fund. This amount is equal to the revenue raised in
2004 from ambulance transports specifically for the Ambulance Trust Fund. Passage of this article
be placed

will not

in the

impact the tax

rate.

Article 17: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $100,000 for the purchase of a portion of a parcel of land off the Epping Road, specifically
referred to as

Map

47, Lot 8, to be available as a site for construction of future Fire

and/or other municipal

facilities.

(The Board of Selectmen recommends

Department

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article,
sum of $100,000 for the purpose of a detailed study of building use options for the Town Office
Article 18:

the

Building, to include remediation of lead and indoor air pollution, analysis of current functions, space

needs, preliminary designs and cost estimates for suggested solutions, including possible use of the

Town

hail.

(The Board of Selectmen recommends

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article,
sum of $80,000 to complete the replacement of storm windows at the Town Hall. (The Board of
Selectmen recommends this appropriation.)
Article 19:

the

Article 20: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $77,000 for the purpose of purchasing a sidewalk plow to replace the Department of Public
Works" 25-year-old sidewalk plow. (Four of the five members of the Board of Selectmen
recommend this appropriation.)
Article 21: To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $72,080. to be added to the previously established Town Retirement Sick Leave Expendable

Trust Fund, and to authorize the Board of Selectmen to expend monies from said fund. (The Board of

Selectmen recommends

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $55,000 for the purpose of constructing a fire-rated stairwell in the Town Hall and making
repairs to the Town Hall floor and stage. (Three of the five members of the Board of Selectmen
recommend this appropriation.)
Article 22:

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $55,000, of which $20,000 will be paid out of private funds, for the purpose of making
improvements to the intersection of Hampton Road and Holland Way. (Four of the five members of
the Board of Selectmen recommend this appropriation.)
Article 23:
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Articles

amended

@ Deliberative Session 2/05/05:

Articles 17, 22, 26, 27, 41, 46, 47, 48

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $50,000 for the purpose of purchasing a Fire Department Command Car to replace the
Department's seven-year-old SUV. (Four of the five members of the Board of Selectmen recommend
Article 24:

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $44,000 for the purpose of purchasing a 1-ton truck with dump body and plow to replace the
Article 25:

Parks and Recreation Department's 10-year-old _ ton truck. (The Board of Selectmen recommends
this appropriation.)

To

Town will

Improvement Fund to assist
improvements to the local and regional transportation
system as set forth in RSA 261 :153 VI. This will be a capital reserve fund whose proceeds are to be
used to fiand, or partially fund through matching grants, eligible local transportation projects such as
parking improvements, public transportation, roadway improvements, traffic management, signal
upgrades, and development of new bicycle paths and sidewalks. Furthermore, to name the Board of
Article 26:

the

community

see if the

in supporting,

establish a Municipal Transportation

wholly or

in part,

Selectmen as agents to make expenditures from

this

fimd not

to

exceed $25,000 per project.

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article,
sum of $40,000 for the purpose of purchasing and installing three "pay and display" parking pay
Article 27:

stations to be located in the

Town Parking

lot

between Water and

Bow

Streets.

Revenues

the

fi"om the

parking pay stations are to be placed in the aforementioned Municipal Transportation Improvement

Fund after the initial investment is reimbursed to the General Fund. (Four of the
Board of Selectmen recommend this appropriation.)

five

members of the

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article,
sum of $37,000 for the purpose of purchasing a "hotbox" for storing and transporting hot top to
Article 28:

replace the Department of Public Works' 10-year-old hotbox. (The Board of Selectmen

the

recommends

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article,
sum of $28,000 to repair the roof of the Town's Parks and Recreation Building. (The Board of

Article 29:

Selectmen recommends

the

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $25,000 to expand the parking at the Recreation Park. (The Board of Selectmen recommends

Article 30:

this appropriation.)

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $25,000, to redesign the entrance to the Public Safety Complex, to address problems of freeze
Article 31:

and thaw damage to the roof, footings and metal supports for the glass at the entrance to the
Complex. (Four of the five members of the Board of Selectmen recommend this appropriation.)
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To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $19,944 for support of the Rockingham County Visiting Nurses Association and Hospice, an
agency that provides at home nursing and hospice care to Exeter residents. (The Board of Selectmen
recommends this appropriation.)
Article 32:

To see if the Town will vote to raise and appropriate, through special warrant article, the
sum of $10,500, for support of the Seacoast Regional Mental Health Center, an agency that provides
mental health services to residents of Exeter. (The Board of Selectmen recommends this
Article 33:

appropriation.)

To see
sum of $3,200, for
Article 34:

community

if

the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate, through special warrant

article, the

support of the Retired Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP), an agency that provides

services at no charge to the elderly of E.xeter. (The

Board of Selectmen recommends

this

appropriation.)

To see
sum of $2,495, for
Article 35:

children.

if

the

Town

will vote to raise

and appropriate, through special warrant

Company, an agency that provides daycare
(The Board of Selectmen recommends this appropriation.)

Article 36:

To

support of Great Bay Kids

see if the

Town

will vote to raise

and support, through special warrant

article, the

for Exeter

article, the

sum

of $800, for support of the Seacoast Chapter of the American Red Cross, an agency that provides
emergency service and care to Exeter residents. (The Board of Selectmen recommends this
appropriation.)

Article 37:
to the

term due

see if the

Town

will vote to authorize the

Board of Selectmen

fill

to appoint replacements
unexpected vacancies during an elected

to resignation or ilbiess?

Article 38:

RSA

To

Exeter Budget Recommendations Committee to

To

see if the

Town

will vote to establish a Recreation

Revolving Fund pursuant

to

NH

Chapter 35-B-2. The money received from fees and/or charges for recreational programs

Town of Exeter Parks and Recreation Department, and donations to it, shall be
accumulate from year to year, and shall not be considered to be part of the Town's
General Fund unreserved fund balance. The Town Treasurer shall have custody of all monies in the
fund, and shall pay out the same only upon order of the Board of Selectmen. These funds may be
expended only for recreation purposes as stated in NH RSA 35-B, and shall not require the
established by the

allowed

to

expenditure of other
Article 39:

On

appropriate the

Town

petition of

funds,

which have not been appropriated

Frank Manter and others

sum of $45,000 toward

Pavilion.

Town will vote to raise and
Swasey Park Pavilion which is

to see if the

the completion of the

to

town events. This amount will be matched, in kind, by the Friends of
(The Board of Selectmen does not recommend this appropriation.)

replace the existing stage for

Swasey Park

for these purposes.

S4

amended

Articles

@ Deliberative Session 2/05/05:

Articles 17, 22, 26, 27, 41, 46, 47,

48

On petition

of Leslie Haslam and others to see if the Town will vote to raise and
for support of the Adult Tutorial Program of Rockingham County, an
agency providing adult literacy, GED prep, adult basic education, and English as a second language
instruction. (The Board of Selectmen does not recommend this appropriation.)
Article 40:

appropriate the

sum of $500

On petition of George M. Walker and others shall the voters of Exeter vote to require the
Board of Selectmen and all other Boards conducting public meetings or governmental meetings in
Article 41:

Exeter, prior to the

commencement of said meeting

On petition

Article 42:

recite the

of Lenore Badolato and others

"Pledge of Allegiance.

to see if the

Dragon Mosquito Control, an agency providing mosquito

Town

will vote for support

of

eradication.

On petition

of Alan C. Bailey and others shall the voters modify the Elderly Exemptions
Town of Exeter, based on assessment for qualified taxpayers, to be as
follows: for a person 65 years of age and up to the age of 75 years, $145,000; for a person 75 years of
age and up to the age of 80 years, $175,000; for a person 80 years old or older, $225,000? To qualify
the person must have been a resident of New Hampshire for at least five (5) consecutive years
Article 43:

from property tax

in the

preceding April

of the year

1

in

which the exemption

such person's spouse owns the

is

claimed,

own

the real estate individually or

must have been married for at least five
(5) years. In addition, the taxpayer must have a net income of not more than $38,500: or, if married, a
combined income of less than $49,500: and own net assets not in excess of $185,000 excluding the

jointly, or if

real estate, they

value of the person's residence.
Article 44:

On petition of Alan

property tax

bills

C. Bailey and others shall the voters of Exeter vote that the individual

end-of-year-mailing include a copy of the associated assessment record or "tax

card" beginning in the year 2005?
Article 45:

On

petition of

Clifford Street to

two-way

Alan C. Bailey and others

shall the voters

of Exeter vote

to restore

traffic?

On petition

of Donald R. Clement and others to see if the Town will vote to deposit 50%,
of $50,000 a year, of the revenues collected pursuant to Revised Statutes Armotated 79A (municipal use change tax allocation) into the conservation fund in accordance with Revised
Statutes Annotated 36-A:5, III as authorized by Revised Statutes Annotated 79-A:25,II.
Article 46:

up

to a limit

Article 47:

On

petition of Herbert

Board of Selectmen

to join

Moyer and

others to see if the

formally reaffirming unconditional support of the U.
Article 48:

On petition

sum of $4,000

Town

will vote to

more than 365 other American communities and 4

of Judy Maudlin and others

for the support

of the

S. Bill

of Rights and the U.

to see if the

New Outlook Teen Center,

Town

recommend

states in publicly

will raise

the

and

S. Constitution?

and appropriate the

an agency providing recreational,

educational and prevenfion programming for youths ages 11-18 and families in Greater Exeter. (The

Board of Selectmen does not recommend

this appropriation.)
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Article 49: On petition of Patricia Yosha and others to see if the Town will vote to designate the
Town's cable channel(s) Government, Education and Community Access; establish a Community
Access Cable TV Committee with board representation from the various interest segments of the
community charged with the responsibility for overseeing the appropriate programming, scheduling
and channel access; and to allocate one third of the approximately $24,000 annual cable company
payment to the Town for the purpose of community access programming and broadcast.

Article 50:

To

transact any other business that

Given under our hands and

may

legally

come

before said meeting.

seals this 27th day of January, 2005.

William E. Campbell, Chairman
Lionel Ingram, Vice-Chairman
Paul A. Binette, Clerk

Robert Eastman

Joseph Pace

Board of Selectmen

We

certify that

the Exeter

on the 31st day of January, 2005, we caused a

Town

true

copy of the within warrant

to

Hall on Front Street, the Exeter Public Library at Founder's Park and the

office, 10 Front Street.

Given under our hands and

seals this 31st

day of January, 2005.

William E. Campbell, Chairman
Lionel Ingram, Vice-Chairman

Paul A. Binette, Clerk

Robert Eastman

Joseph Pace

Board of Selectmen

Amended Warrant

signed and posted, following the Deliberative Session of February 5^:

Given under our hands and

seals this 9th day of February, 2005.

William E. Campbell, Chairman
Lionel Ingram, Vice-Chairman
Paul A. Binette, Clerk

Robert Eastman

Joseph Pace

Board of Selectmen
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BUDGET OF THE TOWN/CITY
^

-y-

OF:

^

REVISED ^
Exeter,

New Hampshire

Appropriations and Estimates of Revenue for the Ensuing Year January

or Fiscal Year

From

1,

2005 to December

31,

2005

to

IMPORTANT:
Please read

1.

RSA

32:5 applicable to

all

municipalities.

Use this form to list the entire budget in the appropriate recommended and not recommended
means the operating budget and all special and individual warrant articles must be posted.

area.

This

2.

Hold at least one public hearing on this budget.

3.

When

completed, a copy of the budget must be posted with the warrant. Another copy must be
file with the town clerk, and a copy sent to the Department of Revenue Administration

placed on
at the

This

is

address below.

to certify that this

budget was posted with the warrant on the

(date)

ox/' 10

"C/S

GOVERNING BODY (SELECTMEN)
Please sign

THIS

in ink.

BUDGET SHALL BE POSTED WITH THE TOWN WARRANT
FOR DRA USE ONLY

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION
P.O.

MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487
(603)271-3397

MS-6
Rev. 07/02
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ACTUAL EXPENDITURES ARE THROUGH

12/31/2004

SPECIAL

WARRANT ARTICLES

Special warrant articles are defined in RSA 32;3,VI as appropriations 1) in petitioned warrant articles;
pursuant to law, such as
2) appropriations raised by bonds or notes; 3)appropriations to a separate fund created
capital reserve funds or trust funds:

or nontransferable article

4)an appropriation designed on the warrant as a special

article or

as a nonlapsing

•ACTUAL REVENUES ARE THROUGH

12/31/2004

.

DEFAULT BUDGET OF THE TOWN
Exeter

OF:

For the Ensuing Year January

or Fiscal Year

2005_to December 31, _2005

1,

From

to

RSA 40:13, IX (b) "Default budget" as used in this subdivision means the amount of the same
appropriations as contained in the operating budget authorized for the previous year, reduced and
increased, as the case may be, by debt service, contracts, and other obligations previously incurred or
mandated by law, and reduced by one-time expenditures contained in the operating budget. For the
purposes of this paragraph, one-time expenditures shall be appropriations not likely to recur in the
succeeding budget, as determined by the governing body, unless the provisions of RSA 40:14-b are
adopted, of the local political subdivision.

1

Use this form

2.

Post this form or any

3.

Per

to

RSA 40:13,

list

the default budget calculation

amended

in

the appropriate columns.

version with proposed operating budget (MS-6 or MS-7)

the default budget shall be disclosed at the

XI, (a),

first

budget hearing.

GOVERNING BODY (SELECTMEN)
or

Budget Committee

if

RSA

40:14-b

is

adopted

NH DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE ADMINISTRATION
COMMUNITY SERVICES DIVISION
MUNICIPAL FINANCE BUREAU
P.O. BOX 487, CONCORD, NH 03302-0487
(603)271-3397
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and

the warrant

Default Budget

-

Town

of Exeter

FY 2005

Default Budget

-

Town

of Exeter

FY 2005

Default

Budget

-

Town

of Exeter

FY 2005

Please us the box below to explain increases or eductions
Acct #

in

colunnns 4 &

5.

COMPARISON BUDGET

COMPARISON BUDGET

BUDGET RECOMMENDATIONS COMMITTEE 2004- 2005
REVIEW OF 2005 BUDGET

Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountants
193 North

Mam Street

•

Concord

New Hampshire

•

•

& Auditors

03301-5063

•

603-225-6996

•

FAX-224-1380

INDEPENDENT A UDITOR 'S REPORT

To

Members of the Board of Selectmen and Town Manager

the

Town

of Exeter

Exeter,

New Hampshire

We

have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Town of Exeter, as of and for the year ended
2003 as shown on pages 2 through 6. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Town of
3
Exeter's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

December

We

1

,

conducted our audit

Those standards require
statements are

fi'ee

in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

that

of material misstatement.

amounts and disclosures
significant estimates

An

in the financial statements.

made by management,

audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

We

.

Management has chosen not to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board (G ASB) Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Managements Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Therefore these
financial statements are presented following the principles that

Management has not presented government-wide
financial position of its governmental activities

were

in effect prior to

GASB

Statement No. 34.

financial statements to display the financial position

and business-type

activities.

The

and changes

in

financial statements presented do not

contain separate statements for governmental, proprietary, if applicable, and fiduciary fund types, nor are major and non-

The financial statements presented report expendable and
major funds separately identified and classified.
nonexpendable trust funds some of which should be reported as special revenue and permanent flinds under the new
reporting model. The financial statements also present a general long-term debt account group which should not be
reported as such, but the information contained therein should be included in the government-wide financial statements

were they presented. Also, the financial statements do not contain any information on capital assets because the
government has not maintained historical cost records of such assets. Management has not presented a management's
discussion and analysis as required. The amounts that would be reported in the missing statements and required
supplementary information, and the effects of reclassifying and properly reporting the information presented are not
reasonably determined.
In our opinion,

because of the effects of the matters discussed

in the

preceding paragraph, the financial statements

referred to above do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

of America, the financial position of the
or

its

Apnl

Town of Exeter as of December 3 1

,

2003, or the changes in

its

financial position

cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended.

1,

iWj&iJj&t*^

2004
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EXHIBITA

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
All

Combined Balance Sheet
Types and Account Groups
December 31. 2003

Fund

EXHIBIT B
TOn?^ OF EXETER, NE}V HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

EXHIBIT D
TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Balances
All Nonexpendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31. 2003

Operating Revenues

New Funds

$

and Dividends
Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments

870
12,396
24.430

Interest

Total Operating Revenues

37.696

Operating Expenses
Administration
Trust Income Distributions
Transfers Out to Other Funds

1,295
17,818

Total Operating Expenses

19.313

Operating Income

18,383

Fund Balances - January

200

382.687

1

Fund Balances - December 31

The notes

$ 401.070

to financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW KAMPSHIRE
Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis)
General and Special Revenue Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003
,

Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental

Charges for Services
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenditures
Current
General Government
Public Safety

Highways and

Streets

Sanitation

Water Distribution and Treatment
Health
Welfare
Culture and Recreation
Conservation

Debt Service
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Interfund Transfers In

Interfund Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources and Uses

Net Changes
Decrease

in

in

Fund Balances

Fund Balance Reserved

for Special

Unreserved Fund Balances

-

January

Unreserved Fund Balances

-

December

1

3

Purposes

TOniSf

EXHIBIT E
OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE

Combined Statement of Cash Flows
All Nonexpendable Trust Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Cash Received as New Funds
Cash Received as Interest and Dividends
Cash Paid as Administrative Costs
Cash Paid as Trust Income Distnbutions
Cash Paid to Other Funds
Net Cash Used by Operating

Cash Flows From Investing

12,396
(

Cash

-

in

January

1

,295)

(18,946)
(394)

Activities

(7,369)

Activities

Purchase of Investments

Net Decrease

870

$

(1.078)

Cash

(8,447)

100.935

1

Cash -December 31

S

92.488

$

18.383

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net

Cash Used by Operating Activities

Operating Income
to Reconcile Operating Income
Net Cash Used by Operating Activities
Net Increase in Fair Value of Investments
Decrease in Accounts Payable

Adjustments
to

Decrease

in Interflind

(24,430)
(1,128)
(194)

Payable

Total Adjustments

(25.752)

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

The notes

$

to financial statements are an integral part
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of this statement.

(7.369)

TOWN OF EXETER, NEW HAMPSHIRE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2003

NOTEl- SUMMAR Y OF SIGNIFICANT A CCOUNTING POLICIES
The

financial statements of the

Town

have been prepared

in

conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting

as applied to the governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is
the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The
more significant of the government' s accounting policies are described below.

principles

1-A

(GAAP)

Reporting Entity

The Town of Exeter, New Hampshire,

is a municipal corporation governed by an elected 5-member Board of
Selectmen and Town Manager. As required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, these fmancial
statements present the Town of Exeter (primary government). Component units are organizations for which
the primary government is financially accountable or for which the nature and significance of their relationship
with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity* s fmancial statements
to be misleading or incomplete. Based on the foregoing criteria, no other organizations are included in the

Town' s
1-B

financial reporting entity.

Basis of Presentation

The accounts of the Town are organized on the basis of funds and account groups, each of which is considered
a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fimd are accounted for with a separate set of selfbalancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses, as
appropriate. The various funds are grouped by type in the financial statements. The following fund types and
account groups are used by the Town:
Governmental Fund Types

General Fund

-

The General Fund is the general operating ftind of the Town. All general tax revenues and
by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this

other receipts that are not allocated
fimd.

From

the fimd are paid the general operating expenditures, the fixed charges, and the capital
that are not paid through other fimds.

improvement costs

Special Revenue Funds - Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue
sources (other than expendable trust or major capital projects) requiring separate accounting because of legal
or regulatory provisions or administrative action.

Capital Projects Funds - Transactions related to resources obtained and used for the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of capital facilities are accounted for in Capital Projects Funds.
Fiduciary Fund Types

Trust and Agency Funds - These funds account for assets held or established under a formal trust agreement
or Town Meeting vote, or assets held by the Town as a trustee or agent for individuals, private organizations,
or other units of government.
Account Groups

Account groups are not

They are concerned only with the measurement of financial position. They
measurement of results of operations. The Town uses the following account groups:

"fiinds."

are not involved with the
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2003

General Fixed Assets Account Group - General fixed assets have been acquired for general governmental
purposes and have been recorded as expenditures in the applicable fund. TTiese acquisitions are requu^ed to
be capitalized at historical cost in the General Fixed Assets Account Group. In accordance with the practice
followed by many other municipal entities in the State, the Town does not maintain such a record of its general
fixed assets and, accordingly, a statement of general fixed assets, required by U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles, is not included in this fmancial report.
General Long-Term Debt Account Group
Town.

-

This account group

is

established to account for

all

long-term

debt of the

1-C

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
Governmental, Expendable Trust and Agency Funds use the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this
method, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both available and measurable
(flow of current fmancial resources measurement focus). Licenses and permits, fmes and forfeits, and most
miscellaneous revenues are recorded when received in cash. General taxes, intergovernmental revenues,
charges for services, and investment earnings are recorded when earned (when they are measurable and
available). Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is incurred, if
measurable, except expenditures for prepayments, debt service, and other long-term obligations, which are
recognized when due.

Nonexpendable Trust Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting. Using this basis of
accounting, revenues are recognized when they are earned, and expenses are recognized when they are incurred
(flow of economic resources measurement focus).

Fund Equity

1-D

Assets. Liabilities and

1-D-I

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Cash and cash equivalents include amounts in demand deposits as well as shortterm investments with a maturity date within three months of the date acquired by the Town.

New Hampshire statutes require that the Town

treasurer have custody of all moneys belonging to the Town
and pay out the same only upon orders of the Town Manager. The treasurer shall deposit all moneys in
participation units in the public deposit investment pool established pursuant to N.H. RSA 3 83 :22 or in solvent
banks in the state. Funds may be deposited in banks outside the state if such banks pledge or deliver to a third
party custodial bank or the Federal Reserve Bank, collateral security for such deposits. United States
government or government agency obligations, or obligations of the State of New Hampshire in value at least
equal to the amount of the deposit in each case.

Investments - Whenever the treasurer has in custody an excess of fluids which are not immediately needed for
the purpose of expenditure, the treasurer shall, with the approval of the Town Manager, invest the excess
funds. New Hampshire law authorizes the Town to invest in the following types of obligations:

•
•
•
•

Obligations of the United States Government,
The public deposit investment pool established pursuant to

RSA 383:22,
Savings bank deposits, or
Certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements of banks incorporated under the laws of the State
of New Hampshire or in banks recognized by the state treasurer.
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person who directly or indirectly receives any such funds or moneys for deposit or for investment in
of any kind shall, prior to acceptance of such funds, make available at the time of such deposit or
investment an option to have such funds secured by collateral having a value at least equal to the amount of
such fimds. Such collateral shall be segregated for the exclusive benefit of the Town. Only securities defined
by the bank commissioner as provided by rules adopted pursuant to RS A 386:57 shall be eligible to be pledged

Any

securities

as collateral.

Investments are stated

at fair

value as of the balance sheet date which

is

based on quoted market prices.

Receivables
All tax and trade receivables are

Tax revenue

is

recorded

when

shown net of an allowance

a warrant for collection

is

for uncollectible amounts.

committed

to the

Tax Collector. An allowance has

been established for potential abatements.

As prescribed by law, the Tax Collector executes a lien on properties

for all uncollected property taxes in the
following year after taxes are due. The lien on these properties has priority over other liens and accrues
interest at 1 8% per annum. If property is not redeemed within the 2-year redemption period, the property is
tax-deeded to the Town.

Various service charges (ambulance, police, water, sewer) are recorded as revenue for the period when service

was provided.
Interfimd Balances and Activity

During the course of normal operations, the Town has transactions between funds, including expenditures and
transfers of resources to provide services and fimd capital outlay. The accompanying governmental and
fiduciary fund financial statements reflect such transactions as transfers. To the extent that certain transactions
have not been paid or received as of December 31, balances of interfimd amounts receivable or payable have
been recorded. Also, an interfund receivable/payable has been recorded to account for the portion of the
property tax activity in the General Fund that is due to the school districts from the Agency Fund.
Prepaid Items
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items.

Compensated Absences
entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment. Compensated
absences accumulate and are recorded as expenditures when they are paid.

Employees are

Deferred Revenue

on its combined balance sheet. Deferred revenue arises when a
meet both the "measurable" and "available" criteria for recognition in the current
period. Deferred revenue also arises when resources are received by the government before it has a legal claim
to them, as when grant monies are received prior to the incurrence of qualifying expenditures. In subsequent
periods, when revenue recognition criteria are met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources,
the liability for deferred revenue is removed from the combined balance sheet and revenue is recognized.

The government

reports deferred revenue

potential revenue does not
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l-D-7

Accrued

Liabilities

and Long-Term Obligations

All payables and accrued liabilities are reported in the financial statements.
In general, Governmental Fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely manner
and in full from current financial resources, arc reported as obligations of these funds. However, claims and
judgements, and compensated absences that will be paid from Governmental Funds are reported as a liability
in the fund financial statements only to the extent that they are "due for payment" during the current year.

The Town reports long-term debt of Governmental Funds
Account Group
l-D-8

at face

value in the General Long-Term Debt

Fund Equity
Generally, fund balance represents the difference between the current assets and current liabilities. The Town
reserves those portions of fund balance that are legally segregated for a specific fijture use or that do not
represent available, spendable resources, and therefore are not available for appropriation or expenditure.

Unreserved fund balance indicates that portion of fund balance that is available for appropriation
management' s intent to set aside these resources for specific purposes.

in future

periods. Designations are

The following

reserves are used

by the Town:

Reserved for Encumbrances - is used to account for open purchase orders, contracts and other commitments
at year-end for which goods and services have not been received.
Reserved for Endowments - represents the principal balance of the Town' s Nonexpendable Trust Funds
which must be held for investment purposes only.
Reserved for Special Purposes - is used to account for the unencumbered balance of restricted funds. These
consist of the uncommitted balances of the Capital Projects Funds, the Town' s Expendable Trust Funds, and
the income portion of the Town' s Nonexpendable Trust Funds.

The following designation

is

used by the Town:

Designated for Special Purposes

- is

used to account for the unencumbered balances of Special Revenue

Funds.

l-D-9

Estimates

The preparation of fmancial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles,
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.
1-D-lO

Memorandum Only

-

Total

Columns

Total columns on the general purpose financial statements are captioned as

"memorandum only" because they

do not represent consolidated financial information and are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. The
columns do not present information that reflects financial position, results of operations or cash flows in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Interfund eliminations have not been made
in the aggregation

of this data.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILFTY
2-A

Budgetary Information
General governmental revenues and expenditures accounted for in budgetary funds are controlled by a formal
integrated budgetary accounting system in accordance with various legal requirements which govem the
Town' s operations. At its annual meeting, the Town adopts a budget for the current year for the General,
Public Library, Water Department and Sewer Department Funds. Project-length financial plans were adopted
for the Capital Projects Funds. Except as reconciled below, budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Management may transfer appropriations between operating categories as deemed necessary, but expenditures

may not legally exceed budgeted

appropriations in total. All annual appropriations lapse at year-end unless

encumbered.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase

orders, contracts,

and continuing appropriations (certain
is employed in the governmental

projects and specific items not fully expended at year-end) are recognized,
funds.

Encumbrances are not the equivalent of expenditures and are therefore reported as part of the fund
December 3 1 and are carried forward to supplement appropriations of tiie subsequent year.

balance at

State statutes require balanced budgets, but provide for the use of beginning unreserved fund balance to
achieve that end. In the fiscal year 2003, $616,172 of the beginning General Fund fund balance was applied
for this purpose.

2-B

Budget/GAAP Reconciliation
Amounts recorded as budgetary revenues and expenditures in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General and Special Revenue Funds
(Exhibit C) are presented on the basis budgeted by the Town. The amounts differ from those reported in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles in the Combined Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds
(Exhibit B) as follows:
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ExDcnditures and Other Financing Uses

2-C
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2-F

New Reporting

Standard

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments.
When implemented, it requires new information and restructures much of the information that governments
have presented in the past. Comparability with reports issued in all prior years will be affected. The Town
is required to implement this standard for the year ended December 31, 2003, but has not done so.
In June 1999, the

NOTE 3 - DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
3-A

Cash. Cash Equivalents and Investments

At year-end, the Town' s carrying amount of deposits was $ 1 3 ,644,9 1 7, and the bank balance was $ 14,502,230.
Of the bank balance, $434,603 was insured or collateralized with securities held by the Town or its agent in
the Town' s name; $5 1 2,35 1 was collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutions' s trust
department or agent in the Town's name; and $13,555,276 was uninsured and uncollateralized.
Repurchase Agreement
s cash equivalents at December 31, 2003, is a short-term investment in a repurchase
agreement issued by a local banking institution. Under this agreement, the Town will be repaid principal plus
interest on a specified date which is subsequent to year-end. The agreement is guaranteed/collateralized with
securities held by the banking institution which exceed the amount of the agreement. To the extent that the
banking institution may default on its commitment to this obligation, the Town is at risk of economic loss.
Management considers this exposure to be minimal. At December 31, 2003, the Town held an investment in
the following repurchase agreement:
Collateral Pledged
Interest
Underlying
Amount
Rate
Maturity Date
Market Value
Securities

Included in the Town'

%

$512,351
Investments

0.89

made by

the

Town

January
are

2,

2004

FHR

summarized below. The investments

$514,992
that are represented

by

specific

identifiable investment securities are classified as to credit risk into three categories as follows:

Category 1

Includes investments that are insured or registered for which the securities are held by the
its agent in the Town' s name.

Town

or

Category 2

Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the
broker, counter party' s trust department or agent in the Town' s name.

Category 3

Includes uninsured and unregistered investments for which the securities are held by the broker,
counter party, counter party' s trust department or agent, but not in the Town' s name.

Town,

rOffTV
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3-B

Taxes Receivable
tax year is from April 1 to March 3 1 and all property taxes are assessed on the inventory taken
of that year. The net assessed valuation as of April 1, 2003, upon which the 2003 property tax levy
was based is:

The property
in April

For the

New Hampshire Education Tax

$

For All Other Taxes

1

,297,47 1 ,43 8

$ 1,321,266,057

The Town subscribes to the semi-annual method of tax collection as provided for by RSA 76: 1 5-a. Under this
method, tax bills are sent on or around June 1 and November of each year, with interest accruing at a rate
of 12% on bills outstanding for more than 30 days. The June 1 billing is considered an estimate only and is
one half of the previous year' s tax billing. The remaining balance of taxes due is billed in the fall after the
New Hampshire Department of Revenue Administration has calculated and approved the Town" s tax rate for
1

the fiscal year.
In connection with the setting of the tax rate.

Town Officials with the approval

of the Department of Revenue

Administration, establish and raise through taxation an amount for abatements and refunds of property taxes,
known as overlay. This amount is reported as a reduction in tax revenue and is adjusted by management for
any tax allowances at year-end. The property taxes collected by the Town include taxes levied for the State
of New Hampshire, Exeter School District, Exeter Region Cooperative School District, and Rockingham
County, which are remitted as required by law. The taxes collected for these other entities are recorded in an

Agency Fund. The ultimate

The

tax rates

responsibility for the collection of taxes rests with the

Town.

and amounts assessed for the year ended December 31, 2003, were as follows:
Property

Taxes
Assessed

Per $1,000 of
Assessed Valuation

Municipal Portion
School Portion
State of New Hampshire
Local

$ 5.66

$

$ 4.03
$ 8.81
$ 1.00

County Portion

5,227,351
11,645,316
1.324.711

Total Property Taxes Assessed

During the current

fiscal year, the

7,471,418

$ 25.668.796

Tax Collector executed a lien on August

1

for all uncollected

2002 property

taxes.

Taxes receivable

at

December

31, 2003, are as follows:

Property

Levy of 2003
Unredeemed (under
Levy of 2002
Levy of 2001
Levy of 2000
Land Use Change
Timber

$

1,073,979

tax lien)

185,195
74,786
1,835
1

Less: Allowance for estimated uncollectible taxes

Net Taxes Receivable

(250.000)
$

84

83,734
4,427

1.273.956
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3-C

Other Receivables
Other receivables at December 31, 2003, consist of accounts
charges),

and intergovernmental receivables arising from

(billiiigs for

water, sewer and ambulance

grants.

Receivables are recorded on the Town* s financial statements to the extent that the amounts are determined to
be material and substantiated not only by supporting documentation, but also by a reasonable, systematic
method of determining their existence, completeness, valuation, and collectibility.

Amounts receivable

3-D

at

December

31, 2003 are as follows:
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3-E

Prepaid Items

The S403,292 of prepaid items
due
3-F

2003

until

m the

Sewer Department Fund represents debt payments made

that

were not

January 2004.

Intergovernmental Payable

Amounts due

to other

Capital Project

governments

at

December

31,

2003 consist

of:

Fund

Great Bndge Repairs
Due to the State of New Hampshire

$

24,201

Trust Funds

Expendable
Balance of funds belonging to the Exeter and
Exeter Region Cooperative School Districts

2,285,910

Agency Fund
Balance of 2003-2004 district assessment due to the Exeter and
Exeter Region Cooperative School Districts

7,899.824
$ 10.209.935

Total

3-G

Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue in the Special Revenue Funds of $256,264 represents grant proceeds which are recorded as
receivable or have been received for which the expenditures being reimbursed have not yet been made.

3-H

Long-Term Debt
Changes

in the

Town's long-term

obligations during the year ended

December

31, 2003, consisted of the

following:

Balances,

January

General Obligation Bonds/Notes
Capital Lease

Totals

1

.

2003

$6,699,488

Balances,

Reductions

$1,114,277

$1,162,743
73.535

216.201

$ 1.114.277

$ 1.236.278

$ 6.867.223

289.736
$ 6.989.224

86

December

Additions

3

1

.

2003

$6,651,022
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Long-term debt payable

at

December

31, 2003, is comprised

of the following:

Principal
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Description of Funding Policy

The System is financed by contributions from both the employees and the Town. Member contribution rates
are established and may be amended by the State legislature while employer contribution rates are set by the
System trustees based on an actuarial valuation. All employees except police officers and firefighters are
required to contribute 5% of eamable compensation. Police officers and firefighters are required to contribute
9.3% of gross earnings. For the six month period ended June 30, 2003, the Town contributed 5 .33% for police
officers, 6.6 1% for firefighters and 4. 14% for other employees. For the six month period ended December 3 1

2003, the

The

Town contributed 7.87% for police officers, 1 3 .44% for firefighters and 5 .90% for other employees.
Town of Exeter for the years 2001, 2002, and 2003 were $133,794,

contribution requirements for the

$154,174, and $346,224, respjectively, which were paid in

full in

each year.

The State of New Hampshire funds 35% of employer costs for police officers and firefighters employed by
the Town. The State does not participate in funding the employer costs of other Town employees. GASB
Statement No. 24, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance
requires this amount to be reported as a revenue and expenditure in the Town' s financial statements. This
amount, $123,088, has been included on Exhibit B - Combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances - All Governmental Fund Types and Expendable Trust Funds and is reconciled to
the budgetary expenditures in

4-B

Note 2-B.

Risk Management

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction of assets; errors
or omissions; injuries to employees; or natural disasters. Diuing 2003, the Town was a member of the New
Hampshire Municipal Association Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC and the New
Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex) Workers' Compensation Program. These entities
are considered public entity risk pools, currently operating as common risk management and insurance
programs for member towns and

cities.

The New Hampshire Municipal Association Local Government Center Property-Liability Trust, LLC
is a Trust organized to provide certain property and liability insurance coverages to member towns, cities and
other qualified political subdivisions of New Hampshire. As a member of the Local Government Center
LLC, the Town shares in contributing to the cost of, and receiving benefits from, a
management program. The membership and coverage run from July 1 to June 30.
The program includes a Self-Insured Retention Fund (SIR) from which is paid up to $500,000 for each and
every covered property, auto physical damage or crime loss, subject to a $ 1 ,000 deductible, and each and every
covered general liability and public officials' liability loss. The Trust maintains, on behalf of its members,
various reinsurance policies shared by the membership.
Property-Liability Trust,
self-insured pooled risk

FY2004 ending June 30, 2004, to be recorded as an insurance expenditure
There were no unpaid contributions for the year ending June 30, 2004 and due in 2003. In
June 2003, the Town received $12, 149 as its 2003 dividend for the years 1990, 1993, 1996 and 1997. The trust
agreement permits the Trust to make additional assessments to members should there be a deficiency in Trust
assets to meet its liabilities. At this time, the Trust foresees no likelihood of any additional assessments for
Contributions paid in 2003 for

totaled $143,342.

past years.
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The New Hampshire Public

Risic Management Exchange (Primex) Worlcers' Compensation Program
management program under RSAs 5-B and 281 -A. The workers' compensation and
employer' s liability policy provides statutory coverage for workers' compensation and up to $2,000,000 of
employer' s liability coverage. Primex retained $500,000 of each loss. The membership and coverage run from
January 1 tlirough December 3 1 The estimated net contribution from the Town of Exeter billed and paid for
the year ended December 3 1 2003 was $83,860. The member participation agreement permits Primex to make
is

a |X)olcd risk

.

,

additional assessments to members, should there be a deficiency in contributions for any

exceed the member's annual contribution. At
assessment for this or any prior year.

4-C

this time,

member year,

not to

Primex foresees no likelihood of any additional

Contingent Liabilities
Litigation

There are various claims and suits pending against the Town which arise in the normal course of the Town'
activities. In the opinion of management, the ultimate disposition of these various claims and suits will not
have a material effect on the financial position of the Town.
Grants

Amounts received

or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by such grantor
disallowed claims, including amounts akeady collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable fiinds. The amount of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined
at this time although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.
agencies.

Any

90
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EXETER SCHOOL DISTRICT WARRANT
2005 ANNUAL MEETING
To

the inhabitants

of the School District of the

New

Hampshire, qualified

You

are hereby notifled to meet as follows:

to vote

upon

Town

of Exeter, County of Rockingham, State of

District affairs:

FIRST SESSION: at the Lincoln Street School Cafeteria, Lincoln Street in said Exeter
on Tuesday, February 8, 2005, at 7:00 pm for explanation, discussion, debate and possible
amendment of the following warrant articles.

Shall the District raise and appropriate as an operating budget, not including

1

appropriations by special warrant articles and other appropriations voted separately, the amounts
set forth

on

purposes

the budget posted with the warrant, or as

budget shall be $1 1,404,532.00, which

is

the

same

amended by vote of the

Should

set forth therein totaling $11, 542,946. 00?

this article

first

session, for the

be defeated, the operating

as last year, with certain adjustments required

by previous action of the District or by law; or the governing body may hold one special
meeting, in accordance with RSA 40:13, X and XVI, to take up the issue of a revised operating
budget only. (The School Board recommends $1 1,542,946.00 as set forth on said budget.)

2.

Shall the District raise and appropriate the

special reserve fund under the provisions of

RSA

sum of $250,000.00

to

be added

to the

35:l-c established by the 1997 District Meeting

purpose of creating a fund to be used to offset the Exeter taxpayers' share of the Exeter
Region Cooperative School District's bond payments (principal and interest) for the new middle
level cooperative school building for the fiscal years from July 1, 2007 through June 30, 2017?
[The Exeter School District is receiving buy-out payments from the Coop for ten years (1998for the

2007.) However, the Exeter taxpayers' share of the bond payments on the

new middle

school

an additional ten years after the buy-out payments cease. The purpose of this
Article is to reserve a portion of the proceeds from next year's buy-out payment to offset the
Exeter taxpayers' share of the bond payment in years 1 1 through 20. A capital reserve fund for
will continue for

this

purpose and the

first

appropriation were approved by the voters at the 1997 annual meeting.]

(The School Board recommends

3.

this appropriation.)

sum of $70,000.00 to be added to the
by the 2002 annual meeting under RSA 35:1, for the purpose of

Shall the District raise and appropriate the

capital reserve fund established

construction, reconstruction, or acquisition of school buildings and/or school ground site

improvements, including associated engineering and architectural fees? [The Exeter School
is receiving buy-out payments from the Coop for ten years (1998-2007). The purpose of
this Article is to reserve a portion of the buy-out proceeds from the Coop to case the future
District

financial impact

on the Exeter taxpayers

for the cost

of renovations

to the

elementary schools.] (The School Board recommends this appropriation.)
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Shall the District raise and appropriate the

4.

expendable

trust

fund under

RSA

sum of $70,000.00

to

be added

to the

198:20-c established by the 1992 District meeting for the

purpose of funding payments due to professional employees for unused accumulated sick days?

{The Exeter School District is receiving buy-out payments from the Coop for ten years (1998The purpose of this Article is to reserve a portion of the buy-out proceeds from the Coop
to ease the future financial impact on Exeter taxpayers for the cost of professional employee
retirements at Exeter School District elementary schools.} (The School Board recommends this
2007).

appropriation)

5.

To hear

6.

To

reports of agents, auditors, and committees or officers heretofore chosen.

transact

any other business which may

SECOND SESSION:

At the Exeter Town Hall

come

before the meeting.

in said Exeter

on Tuesday, March

legally

8,

2005, to choose the following School District Officer(s): one (1) school board member for three
(3) year term, and vote on the articles listed as 1,2, 3, and 4, above, as those articles may be

amended
and

at the First Session;

to close

no

by

earlier than eight

Given under our hands

at said

ballot, the polls to

open

at

seven of the clock in the forenoon,

of the clock in the evening.

Exeter on this

day of January, 2005.

EXETER SCHOOL DISTRICT SCHOOL BOARD:

Joan Henson

Kathy McNeill

Jean Tucker

John Maxwell

George Johnston

EXETER SCHOOL DISTRICT
YEAR BUDGET

2005-2006 FISCAL
01/04/2005

EX 05-06 Budget

REVENUE BUDGET
EXETER SCHOOL DISTRICT - REVENUE BUDGET

1/26/05

EX AnnRpt

Figures 2004

SCH DIST ASSESSMENT
TAX RATE ESTIMATE
UNRES FUND BALANCE

$

ACTUAL
REVENUES"

REVISED

2003-2004

2004-2005

BUDGET

6,659,459

^

III

ESTIMATE

ONLY

INCREASE

2005-2006

7,453,573
$5.18

$
'

ESTIMATE ONLY

- III

8,299,303
$5.76

$

845,730
$0.59

$

200,000

376,152

STATE SOURCES
BUILDING AID

CATASTROPHIC AID
STATE GRANT

64^685
55,097
1^803.762

i

_

J

\

\

60,199.
'

3M20

j

64,685
16,000

i

'_

1,ZP4,960[|

;

"

1

,861 ,668

LOCAL SOURCES
'

INVESTMENT EARNINGS
PUPIL ACTIVITIES

'

18,127'

COOPBUYOUT

1,

LAND SALE
MISC

17^117

1,168,047

-

_

30,572

i

j

GRANTS/FED PROJECTS

TOTAL - ALL FUNDS

,

$

199,944!

180.000'

M56^350,$

4^49^61 -V.$

95

15,000

10,000
^

25,000l

59,739
25,000

'

FOOD SERVICE FUND

473,800
13.344^

67,642

\

10,000'
1,166,551

25,000

34,511 T

!

TITLE VI

MEDICAID

10,000
15,000'

11J93 f

,

'

!

59,739
25,000
180,000
3^633,643

!

$

j516,018)

Exeter School District
Special Education Programs

Previous

Two

Fiscal

Years per

RSA 32:ll-a

12/29/2004

SPECIAL EDUCATION EXPENSES
1200/1230 Special Programs
1430 Summer School

2140
2150
2159
2162
2163
2722
2729

2002-2003

2003-2004

1,702,071

1,895,851

434,180

500,046

$

Psychological Services

Speech and Audiology
Speech Summer School
Physical Therapy
Occupational Therapy
Special Transportation

Summer School

Transportation

TOTAL EXPENSES

SPECIAL EDUCATION REVENUES
1950
3110
3240
4580

Services to other
Special

Ed

LEAs

Portion

AEG

Catastrophic Aid

Medicaid

TOTAL REVENUES

ACTUAL DISTRICT COST FOR SPECIAL EDUCATION

$

1,267,891

$

1,395,805

Exeter School District
Independent Audit Report Summary
Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2004

Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Association/Accountanti
1

9.}

flcT^

M«m Street

•

Concorti

•

dc.

New Hampshire • 1)3301 -5063

Auditors

603-225-6996 • FAX-22^- } R^

INDEPENDENT AUDITOX'SltEPORT

To

the

Members of the School Board

Exeier School District
Exeter,

New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanyrag finajicial statements of the Exeter School District, as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2004 as shown on pages 2 through 4. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Exeter School
District's maiMgcment. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.
Wc conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Slates of America.
standards require that

we

statements are free of material misstatement.

An

amounts and disclosures in the fmancial statements.
sign) ficant estimates

that

Those

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
audit includes examiiung, on a test basis, evidence supporting the

An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe

our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Management has chosen not to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management 's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Governments. Therefore these
financial statements are presented following the principles that were in effect prior to GASB Statement No. 34.
Management has not presented government-wide financial statements to display the financial position and changes in
fmancial position of its governmental activities and business-type activities. The financial statements presented do not
contain separate statements for governmental, proprietary, if applicable and fiduciary fund types, nor are major and non-

major fiinds separately identified and classified. The fmancial statements presenied report expendable trust funds which
should be reported as special revervue funds under the new reporting model. The financial statements also present a
general long-term debt account group which should not be reported as such, but the information contained therein should

govemment-wde

were they presented. Also, the financial statements do not
government has not maintained historical cost records of such
assets. Management has not presented a management's discussion and analysis as required. The amounts that would
be reported in the missing statements and required supplementary information, and the effects of rcclassif^'ing and
be included in the

contain any information

on

financial statements

capital assets because the

properly reporting the information presented are not reasonably determined.

of the effects of the matters discussed in the preceding paragraph, the financial statements
do not present fairly, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America, the financial position of the Exeter School District as of June 30, 2004, or the changes in its financial
In our opinion, because

referred to above

position for the year then ended,

September

2,

2004

97

Plodzik & Sanderson
Professional Axsociation/Aocountants

IM

North

& Auditors
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INDEPENDEfrr AUDITOR'S COUMUNICAnON OF

REPORTABLE CONDmONSAMD OTHER MA ITERS

To

the Nfemberi of the School

Board

Exeter School District
ExciCT,

New Hampshire

In planning and performing our audit of the Exeter School District for the year ended June 30, 20O4, we considered the
School Ditthcl' I internal control structure in order to determine the (cope of our auditing procedures for (he purpose
of expressing our opinion on the financial statetnentt. Our review of these systems was not mtende<) to provide
assurance on the internal control structure and should not be relied on for (hat purpose.

Under the standards established by the AmchcaD Institute of Certi^ed Public Accountants, reportable conditions involve
nutters coming to our attcnticn relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control
structure that, in our judgment, could advor3ely affect the School District's ability to record, process, summarize,

report financial data consistent with (he assertions of management

m the

financial statements.

A material

and

weilcnets

is

which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control structure dements does
low level the nsk that errors or irregularities, in amounts that would be material in relation to
the financial ttatements being audited, may occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control structure would not necessarily
disclose all maners in the internal control structure that might constitute reportable conditions and, accordingly, would
not necciiarily disclose all reportable conditions (hat are also considered to be material weaknesses as defined above.
a reportable condition in

not reduce to

a relatively

During the course of our review of intCTTul controls, no material weaknesses in the School District' s accounting systems
and records were idcnbfied. Minor weaknesses or other considerations coming to our attention were generally
procedural in nature and dealt «ith administrative or recordkeeping practices. In these mstances, we made specific
recommendations or pro>'ided instruction to applicable individuals during the course of our audit fieldwork.

Wc

did howe\'er, note the following:

New

Reporting Suadanl

During June of 1 999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
ami Management 's Discussion and Analysis -for State and Local Gaventmenls. This statement dt«$ticaJty
changes the vzy in which fmancial ttatements are prepared and requires additional Information to be reported in order
Statements

for the financial stalentents to

be

m compliance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America. Sutemeni No. 34 took effect for the Exeter School District fot the

fiscal

year ended June 30,

1<M.

Exeur School District
Independent Auditor's Communication of Reportable Conditions and Other Matters

The School District has not implemented OASB Statement No. 34, but has presented the financial stateinents following
the format that was in effect pnor to GASB Statement No. 34. While we ha vc conducted our audit following generally
accepted auditing standards as we have in past years, we have issued an adverse opinion because the financial statements
arc not presented following the model established by Statement No. 34. As dcscnbcd more fiilly in our audit opinion,
the fuiancial statcmenU are missing several required statements and supplementary information, and the format presented
does not follow Statement No. 34. The opinion is not meant to imply that the figures presented are not oorrxxt, but that

they arc not presented

in

We recommend that the

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
School DiiTriet take acUon

to

implement

GASB

Statement No. 34 as required by accountmg

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Tills report is

restriction

is

September

2,

intended solely for the information and use of managemcnl and others within the admmistratioD. This
is a matter of public record.

not intended to limit distribution of this report, which

T\.&ltS^LM«Clfl-
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DESCRIPTION

ITEVI

SAU# 16 BUDGET
FISCAL YEAR 2005-2006
VDOPTH)
ACTIAL
FV 2003-2004

(

KMHVI OKHCK VDMIMSIAI10N
ADMINISTRATIVE SALARIES
TREASURER* BRD MINUTES
11-2320-113 SPECIAL ED ADMIN SALARIES
11-2320-114 SUPPLEMENTAL SALARIES
11-2320-115 SECRETARIES SALARIES
11-2320-117 HUMAN RESOURCES( 05)
11-2320-110
11-2320-111

11-2320-212

HEALTH INSURANCE
DENTAL INSURANCE

11-2320-211

INSURANCE

11-2320-213

LIFE

11-2320-214

DISABILITY INSURANCE

11-2320-231

LONGEVITY
RETIREMENT

11-2320-232

11-2320-220 PICA
11-2320-250

11-2320-260
11-2320-290
11-2320-270

(7

(6

81%)

65%)

WORKERSCOMPENSATION
UNEMPLOYMENT COM?.
CONFERENCES
COURSE REIMBURSEMENTS

TRAINING
AUDIT EXPENSE
11-2320-372 LEGAL EXPENSE
11-2320-373 MENTOR TRAINING
11-2320-320 STAFF
11-2320-371

11-2320-450

RENT

11-2320-440

REPAIR & MAINTENANCE

11-2320-520
11-2320-521

ERRORS AND OMISSIONS
PROPERTY INSURANCE

11-2320-531

TELEPHONE

11-2320-532

POSTAGE
TRAVEL

11-2320-580

11-2320-610

SUPPLIES

11-2320-611

MAINTENANCE CONTRACTED

11-2320-733

LEASED EQUIPMENT

11-2320-734

EQUIPMENT

11-2320-810

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS
CONTINGENCY

11-2320-870

319,415 00

F\ 2003-2004

ADOPTED
t\ 2004-2005

ADOPTED

12/20/04

t\ 2005-2006

SAU#16BUDGCT
FISCAL YEAR 2005-2006
ADOPTED
ACTUAL

ITEM DESCRIPTION

FY 2003-2004

nSCAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
MANAGER

1I-232I-II0

BUSINESS

11-2321-116

FISCAL

ll-2321-llS

NEW

11-2321-130

PAYROLL/A/P SALARIES

11-2321-211

HEALTH INSURANCE
DENTAL INSURANCE

11-2321-212

11-2321-213 LIFE

61.800.00

MGR. SAL
CLERICAL POSITION
SVS.

INSURANCE

11-2321-214

DISABILITY INSURANCE

11-2321-220

FICA

11-2321-231

11-2321-290

LONGEVITY
NH RETIREMENT
WORKERS COMPENSATION
UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATIC
CONFERENCES

11-2321-330

COMPUTER SUPPORT

11-2321-440

REPAIR

11-2321-232

11-2321-250

11-2321-260

AND MAINTENANCE

11-2321-520

TREASURER'S BOND

11-2321-531

TELEPHONE EXPENSE

11-2321-580

MILEAGE

11-2321-610 SUPPLIES

11-2321-741

SERVICES

EXPENSE

EQUIPMENT
FISCAL SVS TOTALS

FV 2003-2004

ADOPTED
FY 2004-200S

ADOPTED

12/20/04

FY 2005-2006

SAU# 16 BUDGET
YEAR 2005-2006
ADOPTED
ACTIAL

FISCAl.

ACCW

ITEM DESCRIPTION

FY 2003-2004

!> 2003-2004

ADOPTED
F\ 2004-2005

ADOPTED

R

1

2/20/04

2005-2006

TECHNOLOGY

2820-329

TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE SALARll
TECHNICAL CONSULTANT
TECHNICAL TRAINING

2320-531

TELEPHONE

4,465 72

5,599 74

4.500 00

1,260 00

2320-580

MILEAGE

5,400 00

3.907 54

3,600 00

8,100 00

2820-610

SL'PPLIES

4,534 28

13.837 81

8,000 42

5,350 00

2820-611

SHIPPING

1.300 00

453 76

1,500 00

1,500 00

2820-641

900 00

1,932 75

650 00

750 00

2820-650

BOOKS AND PERIODICALS
SOFTWARE

33,878 00

32,248 82

35,264 98

38,837 00

2820-733

FURNITURE

2820-738

REPLACEMENT OF EQUIPMENT
EQUIPMENT

2820-110
2820-321

2820-739

73,848 00

67,737 84

81,054 02

84,000 00

13,000 00

8,486 45

10,000 00

10,000 00

13,200 00

4.77142

13,400 00

13.140 00

000

-k-k-k-k-k

P^QYES *****
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PARKS AND RECREA TION DEPARTMENT
Two

thousand four was an exciting year for our department. The Community, Exeter Youth Soccer
(EYSA) and our department entered into a groundbreaking partnership to expand the

Association

athletic fields at the

Recreation Park on

Hampton Road.

We

are in the process

of adding two

sized soccer fields, renovating the Softball field and installing irrigation to the entire park.
cost of this expansion

was sponsored by E.Y.S.A.

cost to the taxpayers of Exeter. Although

Glenn Klink and

Tom

in return for future field

entire

use therefore, having no

many people should be mentioned,

Hiney of EYSA made

fiill-

The

the cooperation of

this possible.

amount of
Oilman Park on Bell Avenue. The Park is once again a site for T-ball, baseball, and
youth soccer, as well as a lovely neighborhood park. In 2005 we will continue renovations to Oilman
Park by rehabilitating the outdoor sand volleyball court and we hope to have it available in late
spring. We invite the community at large to re-discover this park.
In addition to the expansion noted above, our Maintenance Department did a substantial

work

The

to renovate

voters

were again very generous

We have improved and repaired the
locker rooms, purchased

in

approving a warrant

filter

article to

renovate the

swimming

pool.

system, sand blasted and repainted the pool, repainted the

new guard chairs and we are in the process of bidding out a slide to replace
new addition we are working on is an outdoor skating rink at Park

the aging diving board. Another
Street

Common

for the winter

of 2004-05. Details are

In terms of program services our "soft" deadline for

still

being worked out.

program

registration has

been a success.

We

accommodate many additional children with this new procedure. Lacrosse is a new
addition to our program list. Watch for our new K-2 instructional program this spring. Flag football
continues to grow. Kids Love Crafts has been a success and we will expand upon our February/April
Vacation Camps. Lastly there will be a major overhaul of our Summer Adventure Camp, which we
have been able

to

will unveil this spring.

we would like to take this opportunity to thank all the volunteers who assisted in making our
programs a success. Your contribution is key to the development of our youth. We also
appreciate the generosity of individuals and businesses whose donations supported several activities
such as the Summer Concert Series and Halloween festivities. We expanded our concert series to
include children's concerts this year and plan to make it even better next summer.
Finally,

sports

All of us at the Parks and Recreation Department look forward to serving you in 2005. We are
always open to suggestions from the community regarding future programs and activities.

Michael Favreau - Director
Cindy Lundberg - Clerical Supervisor
Mike Oingras - Park Foreman

Oreg Bisson - Asst. Director
Brooke Nelson - Part-time Secretary
Oarry Snook - Park Maintenance
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SWASEY PARKWAY
The Swasey Parkway Trustees have embarked on an
with the Exeter Area

GFWC

(General Federation of

Swasey Parkway Pavilion" committee with a singular
Swasey Parkway Pavilion.

exciting project in 2004.

Women's

The

Trustees, along

Club), have formed "The Friends of

objective: raising funds for the construction of

the

Each summer, hundreds of area residents are drawn to downtown Exeter to gather at Swasey
Parkway, along the Squamscott River. Town sponsored concerts take place on a well-worn wooden
platform. The Friends of Swasey Parkway Pavilion are actively raising funds to replace the current
platform with a pavilion. A new pavilion will greatly enhance the quality of the live performance and
the enjoyment of our discerning concertgoer while keeping with the historic nature of Swasey
Parkway and the Town of Exeter. We hope the new pavilion will be used by area residents
throughout the year for public speaking opportunities, school functions, private functions and become
a place where lasting memories are made.

Swasey Parkway Pavilion will be a traditional New England design with an elegant elliptical arch for
an unobstructed view. The design will incorporate wide wrap around stairs to act as risers for choral
Materials will be chosen to compliment the historic nature of its surroundings while
groups.
complying with

We

all state

are continuing to

and federal guidelines.

do our best

received from a trust fund.

A

in

maintaining this beautiful Parkway on limited funds from interest

special thanks to

David Kady of Kady Landscape

Inc.,

who

has done a

remarkable job in maintaining the Parkway again this year.

We

finished the

new

resurface the existing

electrical work/light posts fi-om a warrant article.

We

were also able

walkway.

Financial Report Swasey Parliway -2003
|

to

Proposed Swasey Parkway Pavilion

(Article #39)

RED CEDAR
ROOF SHINGLES

IBERGLASS
:OLUMN COVERS

EAST elevah
W-IMT

Taking advantage of
Internet Access computers
at the Exeter Public Library
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Water and Sewer Advisory Committee

The Town of Exeter's Water and Sewer Advisory Committee

is

a volunteer board of residents

providing technical and financial input to the Board of Selectmen and the Department of Public

Works (DPW) on facility and infrastructure capital projects, annual budgeting, and long term
management approach. In 2004, we concentrated on the continued planning and implementation of
upgrades

to

aged infrastructure and

facilities in

an effort

to

provide quality services to residents and

businesses for the next 20-25 years.

Our

largest effort of the year involved building on last year's final design for major water system
improvements to the Portsmouth Avenue treatment plant, portions of which date to the late 1800s.
The Committee assisted the DPW and the town's technical consultant during a pre-bid phase to
accurately assess the construction cost of the facility. Bids were received in December and will be
used to calculate an exact rate structure to help pay for the proposed improvements, should they be
approved by town voters in March 2005.

Other water system projects conducted during the year included members providing input on town

committees charged with protecting the Dearborn Brook watershed, one of the town's primary water
sources, as well as the newly formed Exeter River Study Committee, both of which affect town water
supplies and the town's treatment facilities.

On

the sewer side of operations, the

Committee worked with DPW to complete construction of
recommended in the 2001 Facilities Plan

various sewer system projects conducted during the year

update and Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) for the Department.

Our budgeting process was again

a collaborative effort between the Committee,

Departments of Finance and Planning

We continued to

in order to coordinate

work and

DPW and the

efforts in other areas

of town.

use the strategy of incorporating several infrastructure improvement projects and

equipment upgrades into the budget while keeping overall expense increases relatively flat. This
approach has been successfully used since 1999 in advance of planned significant capital
improvements to both systems beginning in 2005.

The Committee looks forward to 2005 as a continued interactive process with town departments and
rate payers to implement needed facility upgrades for a fair and reasonable cost. We wish to thank,
in particular, town employees who continually assist us in serving the needs of the Town of Exeter:
George Olson, Town Manager; Keith Noyes, Director of Public Works; Victoria Del Greco, Water &.
Sewer Superintendent; and Jennifer Perry, P.E., Town Engineer. In addition, several water
department staff including chief operator Tony Calderone, have provided valuable input into

proposed improvements making

it

a successful team effort.

108

As
in

always,

we welcome new member

interest

from those who have a particular expertise or

interest

serving the town on this utility board.

Respectfully submitted.

W. Robert

Kelly, P.E.

Chairman

Members:
Joseph Baiiiargeon,

Sr.

Wayne McRae
Herb Moyer
Rick Sawyer

William Campbell, Selectmen's Representative

WTP Flooding
Hurricane Edna

September, 1954

Water Plant
Portsmouth Avenue

October, 1996

Water Treatment Plant
Portsmouth Avenue
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BUILDING INSPECTOR
The Building Department is still as busy as ever. New homes are about one-half of last year's total,
approximately 20 new homes for the year 2004. Although as homes get larger, they require more
inspections. The larger homes seem to be the "norm" by today's standards averaging about twentyfive to three

thousand square

feet in size.

workload as residents are improving

Additions and renovations are

their property for

still

a big part of our

expanded living or upgrading

to

newer

conditions.

As
to

usual,

we

are bracing for another busy year.

thank the office staff- Barb

records in their proper places.
issues or suggestions they

may

My

Electrical Inspector Art

McEvoy and Linda Bruce

We

for their hard

work

French and
in

1

would

helping us keep

like

many

always welcome residents for questions about building or zoning

have.

As always, the Building Department works closely with other Departments within the Town. Also,
we administrate the Zoning Board of Adjustment (ZBA) and Historic District Commission (HDC),
assist the

Planning Department with respect to zoning issues and are considered an information center

for contractors

and residents regarding building, planning, zoning and code enforcement

Respectfully submitted.

Douglas Eastman
Building Inspector/Code Enforcement Officer
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issues.

BUILDING INSPECTOR
2004 BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED - 764
PERMIT (CONSTRUCTION VALUE) AMOUNT - $ 49,750,440.09
PERMIT FEE AMOUNT - $205,261.21

TYPE OF
CONSTRUCTION

HISTORIC DISTRICT COMMISSION
This has been a busy year for the Historic District Commission (HDC) acting on applications from
owners and tenants in the commercial and residential historic districts. We urge all owners and
tenants in the historic districts to be familiar with the Preservation Cjuidelines for the Exeter Historic

The guidelines were revised

District.

They

in

2003

to incorporate user

are intended to help preserve the value of the

reviewed on the Town's
Building office.

A

web

site, at

Town's many

and

HDC member comments.

historic buildings.

the Exeter Public Library, and at the

copy can also be purchased

at the

Town

They can be

Planning and

Planning and Building office.

projects this year was the preparation of the Historic and Cultural Resources
Town's Master Plan. This is a new chapter this year that consolidates the information
on these resources, which had previously been discussed piece-meal in various other chapters of the
Master Plan. Members of the HDC. the Exeter Historical Society, and the Rockingham Planning
Commission all worked on this document to make it. we hope, informative and readable.

One of our major
chapter of the

^^'e

continue to work on taking digital photographs of the buildings in the historic districts in order to

incorporate them into the

Town's geographic information system (GIS). Being able to view the
GIS on the Town's laptop computer, during our review of

buildings as they are today, using the

applications will be of great help to us and,
Cantelli. a former

HDC

member,

we

think, to the applicants.

for his excellent

work

to date in

We

wish

to

thank Steve

photographing the historic

buildings.

The

HDC

consists of 7 regular and 4 alternate

currently vacant, and we're losing

meetings.

Wanda

members.

Two

of our alternate

member

positions are

Benard. our very able recorder of the minutes of our

her family are moving to Texas. We will miss her greatly. Those who are
on the Commission are urged to submit an application to the Board of Selectparticularly need individuals with construction and restoration experience. Serving on the

Wanda and

interested in serving

men.

We

HDC

is

We

certainly interesting and.

we

invite all interested residents to

Nowak Room

of the

Town

think, rewarding.

our meetings held on the third Thursday of each month

Office Building.

Respectfully submitted.

The

Historic District

Commission

Fred Kollmorgen, Chair

Lackey
Wanda Benard
Ed Chase
Judy Rowan
Dennis Derby. Planning Board Representative
Jeanette

Joe Pace, Selectmen's Representative

Debbie Kane. Alternate
Pepita Walker. Alternate

Alternate (Vacant)
Alternate (Vacant)

in the

PLANNING DEPARTMENT
New Development:
oversaw the review of a variety of projects, both residential and nonwere two projects presented by Town departments; the Rec Park Soccer
Fields and Water Treatment Plant. Other projects included " The Barking Dog" doggie day care,
Folsom Tavern move and improvements, Exeter Rental expansion on Hampton Road and Phillips
In

2004

the Planning Office

Among

residential.

the latter

Exeter Academy's Children Center renovation.

As far as residential projects, this year was unusual with the addition of 55 multi-family units. In a
more typical year we may have an addition of around five multi-family units. This increase was due
to the conversion of 131 Court Street (former hospital senior facility) into 22 town house style units,
and the addition of 28 multi-family units from the Forest Ridge subdivision off Watson Road

new lots. The two largest projects were an
Farm off Powder Mill Road and a 14-lot subdivision entitled

Single family subdivisions resulted in the addition of 32
1

subdivision called Rolling Ridge

1-lot

Beech

Hill Estates off of

Project

Once

Beech

Hill.

Management:

a project has

met

all

the conditions of the Planning Board, final approval

is

obtained. At this

point the project's planning stage ends and the construction/inspections phase begins. Part of our

work involves overseeing all site improvements other than the buildings, a duty we share with Public
Works staff. In 2004, there were over 20 construction sites being monitored by inspection staff In
an effort to better oversee these projects, town staff met once a month to discuss construction issues
and to strategize solutions. Some of the projects monitored included Riverwoods III off Kingston
Road, Forest Ridge off Watson Road, doctor's offices at the comer of Hampton and Guinea Roads
and multiple projects on Epping Road.
Committees:
There are numerous local and regional committees in which I participate. One regional planning
group or Seacoast Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) deals with regional transportation
This year

issues.

I

was nominated

as vice-chair of the committee.

participating in a brainstorming session hosted

by

The highlight of the year was

NHDOT as an effort on their behalf to check in

with interested parties regarding their ten-year plan.

Some of the local committees I am involved with include the Downtown Parking Group, the Exeter
Development Commission, Exeter's Master Plan and the Historic Downtown Restoration Group.
As always,

1

committees.
that

we

do.

would like to thank all the volunteers involved in assisting us with all these projects and
I am amazed that so many folks are willing to spend countless hours assisting with all
Your hard work and tireless commitment is much appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Sylvia von Aulock

Town

Planner
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PLANNING BOARD
The Exeter Planning Board
use in the

Town

is

entrusted with the task of encouraging and directing appropriate land

of Exeter. The Board uses the Exeter Master plan as a guide

serves as the blueprint for growth and development of the town.

volunteers appointed by the Board of Selectmen.
character of the

1

2.

3.

community by adhering

responsible for the preparation and

It is

a.

Master plan

The Board

to three basic sets

strives to

making decisions as
composed of citizen

in
is

it

enhance and preserve the

of responsibility.

amendment of the Town's

improvement plan

b.

Capital

c.

Subdivision regulations

d.

Site plan

review regulations

Within these plans and regulations, the Board
a.

Subdivisions

b.

Lot

c.

Site plans for non-residential uses

line

The Board

is

responsible for review and approval of all:

adjustments

and multi-family dwelling

units.

Annually, the Board reviews and then recommends, as appropriate, amendments to the

Town's zoning ordinances

for consideration

by the Town's

This past year has been a busy one for the Board. Several

new

citizens.

residential

and commercial reviews

have passed through the Board. These have included: Forest Ridge on Watson Road, The Barking
Dog (Doggie Daycare) on Route 27, Stop & Shop on Portsmouth Avenue, and Thacher Commons on
Court Street. In addition, the Board continues to evaluate the use of impact fees to support the expanded town services required by growth. Smart growth principles are used in the management of
growth and development in the Town. The Board continues to research affordable housing as one
effort to maintain the diversity that Exeter enjoys while providing

workforce

in the Seacoast.

The Board

housing that

is

affordable to the

also continues to help define an effective capital

plan which incorporates those costs of the Exeter Schools and the

Town of Exeter as

improvement

projected over

the forthcoming years.

The Board generally meets every second and fourth Thursday of the month at 7:00PM in the Nowak
Room of the Town Office Building. The Board encourages the public to attend and participate at
these meetings. These meetings are also televised on EXTV. Channel 22, the government and education channel for the

The Board

is

Town

of Exeter.

very appreciative of all the support and expertise of Sylvia von Aulock, the

Planner, as well as the Planning Department staff and that of the other
is

Town

town departments. The Board

also grateful of the support, cooperation and participation of the Exeter Selectmen and of the

Exeter residents. The Board appreciates the continued support of the Planning Board on the part of
the citizens of Exeter.

Respectfully submitted,

Langdon Plumer, Chair

Dennis Derby. Vice-Chair.

Gwen

Robert Eastman, Selectmen's Rep.

Craig MacPherson, Clerk

Kathy Corson

Anthony Zwaan
Kevin Blayne, Alternate
The Exeter Plannin}^ Board

Cynthia Childers. Alternate Amy Bailey, Alternate
Charles Mixtcr III. Alternate Warren Henderson, Alternate
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EXETER ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT
The Exeter Zoning Board of Adjustment sits as a five member quasi-judicial body to hear and decide
on four types of applications: variance, special exception, appeal from an administrative decision and
equitable waivers of dimensional requirements.

An

application for a variance alleges that a

literal

enforcement of a particular provision of the zoniiig
An application for a special exception is a

ordinance would result in an unnecessary hardship.

request to permit a specific use subject to meeting certain criteria set forth in the Zoning Ordinance.

An

appeal from an administrative decision involves a request for review of a decision by an

administrative official with respect to enforcement of any provision of the Zoning Ordinance.
equitable waiver of a dimensional requirement

may

be granted

if the

setback requirement has mistakenly been violated despite a good faith

An

Board finds that a zoning
effort to comply with the

regulations.

for thirteen meetings in 2004 and considered a total of
Three applications for variance were heard - one of which was
Ten applications for special exception were heard, eight of which were
One appeal from administrative decision was filed and denied. At the

The Zoning Board of Adjustment convened
fourteen (14)

new

applications.

granted and two denied.

granted and two denied.

writing of this report, one variance application

December public

is

being considered and has been scheduled for a

hearing.

The Zoning Board of Adjustment meets the third Tuesday of each month at 7:00 P.M. in the Nowak
Room of the Town Office Building. The Board would encourage any residents with an interest in
participating on this Board to contact the Planning & Building Department.
Respectfully submitted,

The Exeter Zoning Board of Adjustment
Michael Dawley, Chairman
Martha Pennell, Vice-Chair
Joseph Stone, Clerk
Maurice Fremont-Smith

Oilman
Gordon Wilkes, Alternate
David Mirsky, Alternate
Julie

Stephen Cole, Alternate

Marc Carbonneau, Alternate
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WELFARE DEPARTMENT
General Assistance

is

designed to provide short-term assistance

Exeter. Assistance

is

granted for the help of basic needs such as shelter, food,

needs and

is

always done

reimburse the

1

would

in the

Town when

like to

thank

all

to eligible residents

all

other

Town of

and medical

form of a voucher. All recipients of General Assistance agree

to

they return to an income status that allows them to do so.

the organizations that have assisted those in need during the past year and to

take the opportunity once again to thank the Board of Selectman, our

ment heads and

of the

utilities,

town employees

for

Town Manager,

fellow depart-

your cooperation and support.

This year some of the outside resources have not been obtainable due to financial situations, however

we were

fortunate

enough

to locate other resources to replace them.

Another year has passed and the challenges have increased. However, as the Welfare Director.
looking forward to the continued support of the town and the community to provide assistance
those in need.

Respectfully submitted.

Sue Benoit
Welfare Director

"Exeter

Remembered" An exhibit ofphotos of Exeter
Turn oftlte Century (1890-1920). Fall, 2004
at the Exeter

Town Hall
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Gallery.

at the

I

am

for

Health Department
The Health Depanment's

responsibility

is

to enforce the

NH

Public Health Rules and Laws, as well

The Health Officer and Deputy Health Officer serves
and local community issues concerning local public health.

as local health ordinances and regulations.
liaisons

between the

state officials

The Health Department

as

We conduct
We inspect and

inspects and approves daycare facilities and foster homes.

investigations into complaints and nuisances

which may endanger public

health.

license the food establishments in town.

As of October 3 2004 Exeter had eighty-two licensed food service operations. Seven operations
changed ownership and eight facilities closed operations or did not renew their licenses. Three plan
reviews were completed for new facilities.
1 ,

There are numerous foster care homes.

Exeter has twelve licensed daycare

facilities.

The Health Department hosted two

local area health officer training meetings.

The Deputy Health

Officer attended several conferences and training meetings to keep current with state regulations,

FDA

regulations and

new

public health issues.

National Environmental Health Association,

and the

NH

Health Officer Association and

Commission
committee

to

The Deputy Health Officer is a member of the
Safe Food Alliance, NH Public Health Association

NH

its

executive board.

to study the issue

are participating

of local public health officer training, health

We are also working
England Environmental Health Association.

infrastructure of other agencies.

New

We

on the

Study the Relationship between Public Health and the Environment and

w ith

alert

its sub
networking and the

other towns to revitalize the Northern

For a breakdown of activities, see the Exeter Fire Department Consolidated Report. For information
on current health issues and links to other health agencies such as the NH State Bureau of Food
Protection, Child Care, Foster Care, Environmental Services and links to the CDC, FDA and others,
visit the Health Department website at exetemh.org.
Questions or concerns regarding public health issues

Department

at

773-6132 or email

to:

may be

directed to the Exeter Health

healthofficer @exeternh.org.

Respectfully Submitted,

Judy Jervis

Deputy Health Officer
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EMERGENCY MANA CEMENT
Town of
commun-

This past year has been a very productive one for Emergency Management. The
Exeter just completed
ity's leaders

and

its

third

Seabrook

drill

their abilities to deal with

of the year. These

complicated situations and changing

conditions. These drills are monitored by the State's Office of

and

I

drills test the

Emergency Management

FEMA.

would

like to

thank

all

of the department heads and

such a great job during these
each and every
This year

we

management

drills.

their representatives for all

drill.

will be

adding a

new

section to the town's

web

site to

address emergency

issues. This section will address natural disasters as well as terrorism

helpful information

on how you can protect you and your family.

Sincerely

Brian

doing

Your professionalism and dedication show during

Comeau

Chief of Department

Refurbished Engine 2

'i^^*'^-tt>ii'"'
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and

EXETER PUBLIC LIBRARY
II

hccn

voii lui\cn"t

your

in

libr;ir\

yuu should take niinutc and come on in. You will onl>
is but \()U uill need much more than a minute to see all

lalcl>

need a minute to see ulial a bus\ place

it

ii

it

has to olTer.

The

inlernel access

than

last year.

section has several

We

otTer a

estate,

We

in

constant use and there are seven preschool story times, two more

new shelving tor the mysteries and the westerns. The
new titles and we have expanded the large print area.
is

wide variety of programs

money

for residents olall ages

issues, parenting, ghosts,

offer several out-reach programs:

Recreation

We

computers are

There

PlayCamp and

humor and

we

bring

deliver books to nursing homes, have

book

We

from your

name just

talks at the schools
if

at the local

and

at

real

a few.

reading to the children

Bay Kids Camp

bring books to people unable to get to the library. In fact,
to or

from those concerning health,

local history to

summer

the children at the Great

very popular magazine

at the llxeter

elementary schools.

senior care

you need help we

facilities.

will carry

We

your books

car!

had our ever-popular summer reading programs with more children, teens and adults joining

in

than e\ er before.
is the staff and the personalized one-on-one service we
wide range of services to residents from reading lists and readers"
advisory to instruction on research on whatever topic interests the patron. We explain how to use the
internet safely and how to determine if a site is a valid source of information. We also offer a wide
variety of computer programs: some that help in job searches and resume writing, and others to scan
photos and other pictures to add to a report or send to a friend.

Perhaps the most important part of the library

provide for residents.

In

We

offer a

order to continue to offer lixeter the services

interested residents are in the process

Ihe Exeter Public Library

We

appreciate this

is

a

it

needs,

of developing our

all

find

Hope Godino
Director

\\\\\\.e\eterpl.t>r;^

de\ve\'</exeterpl.t>r.!

Own

"Dewey III"
ii.k.a.

"The

Kiji

staff,

and

2005-2010.

very busy place becau.se Fxeter residents use and support the library.

community support and we

Exeter IJhrary's

members of the Board of Trustees,
third five-year plan for

D"

\'-)
1

it

very rewarding to

work

at

lixeters library

CONSER VA TION COMMISSION
was working with the Open Space Committee for fUrther land
of the Raynes/Wiggin bam reconditioning. Thanks to the Open
Space Committee's efforts several more parcels have been protected. Although it was a long process,
the work at the Raynes/Wiggin barn is slowly coming along.
The Commission's focus

this year

protection and completing Phase

I

This year a major effort to correct significant drainage problems was completed and the foundation

The north side of the barn has been straightened out and brought back to its more
Thru the efforts of the DPW much of the debris in the barn was removed. The next step
will be to improve some structural work inside the barn and fix broken windows and doors. We
would like to give a special thanks to Peter Dow who is overseeing the work of the engineers and
contractors. The Commission has reached an agreement that will return the farm to agriculture use.
walls were redone.
original look.

This year marked the sixth year the Commission has participated in the state Volunteer River

Assessment Program.

We continue to monitor the health of the Exeter River at several

locations

throughout the summer. In addition several members of the Commission regularly boated on both the
Exeter and Squamscott to observe
resource within

its

it

up

close. Exeter is very fortunate to

have such a beautiful natural

borders.

open space for diverse recreational purposes. From
walk in the woods our open space is giving Exeter
undeveloped and pristine lands to enjoy and appreciate. Conversely, the amount of time required by a
volunteer board is making it difficult to keep up with the monitoring and maintenance our lands and
It is

gratifying to see people using Exeter's

bicycling, hiking, boating or just taking a leisurely

trails require.

The Conservation Commission meets

the second

7:00pm. These meetings are televised on
website www.exeternh.org

Tuesday of every month

EXTV channel

22. Information

in the

may

Nowak Room

.

We appreciate your help and comments as we continue to work for the protection of the natural
resources of our

Town.

Respectfully submitted.

Donald Clement, Chair
William Campbell, Selectmen's Rep
Tim Warr

John Henson
Marcia Tingley
Jay Sullivan
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at

also be obtained at our

Richard Sugatt
Joarma Pellerin
Katherine Rice

Map*

UDdi

EXETER ARTS COMMITTEE
The Exeler Arts Committee has continued

activity with rotating exhibitions

its

of the Woric of Exeter

Town Offices. Up to twenty-five artists display their work in each of three
May and October. An open invitation to exhibit in each of these displays is

area artists in the Exeter

exhibitions in January,

advance of each show in our pre-exhibit newsletter. The public
view these exhibits during regular hours at the Exeter Town Offices.

sent to area artists in

is

invited to

for 2004 included five exhibitions at the Exeter Town Hall Garry on the second
of the Town Hall. The newly installed elevator, paid for with both private and public funds, has
greatly improved access to this beautiful exhibition space. The New Hampshire Society of

Our expanded agenda
floor

Photographic Artists continues to display
exhibit of artists

own

its

work during the January-February time slow. We had an
2004 display. Members of the Seacoast Art

favorite paintings for our spring,

Association hosted an exhibit of their work for our

summer show.

In September and October, in

cooperation with the library at Phillips Exeter Academy, the Exeter Historical Society, Decor
Antiques, Polly's Flower

Shop and Exeter Flower shop, we mounted an exhibition of glass plate
890 to 1920 called Exeler Remembered. This was our most successful

photographs of Exeter from

1

we began our displays at the Town Hall Gallery. We finished 2004 with a holiday
exhibit during November and December, in concert with the Festival of Trees display sponsored by
the Exeter Area Chamber of Commerce. A full schedule of exhibitions is planned for 2005.

exhibit since

Co-Chairs: Dolores Rebolledo and Barbara Cowan.

Committee Members: Curt Mackail, Helen Hazen, Barbara Corbett,
Bill

Tom

Devouton, Francesca Fay.

Childs and Jane Bentlv. Emeritus. Selectman Joe Pace.

Maureen McHu^li was one of many

visilur.s lo

Full of 200-1 at the Exeler

Remembered"
Town Hall Gallery

ihe "Exeler

exhibit in ihe

OPEN SPACE COMMITTEE
Last year at this time, the

own

ten or

more

Open Space Committee had

contacted approximately eight landowners

acres of undeveloped and unprotected parcels of land in the

Town

of Exeter.

It

who

was

our mission to find property that was of significant value to our community, owned by landowners
who are eager to protect their property permanently through conservation easements.

It

has been a tremendously successful year. This

fall

we purchased

19-acres of undeveloped land

adjacent to conservation land and other lands that will soon be placed in conservation. This property,
located in the northeast part of town,

In

November,

the

development

rights

was owned by Thomas H. Conner ($47,500).
on a 32.97-acre

lot

on Newfields Road were purchased from

Laura Lee and Kevin Callahan. This extends the stretch of protected land from the Harrington Farm
to the Raynes Farm, bordered by Newfields Road and the Squamscott River ($630,000).

Raymond Baglin own 26.78-acres of land off Beech Hill, across from the existing town
Bunker conservation area and next to the Webb/Baglin land that is also in conservation. A conservation easement purchased from them on 23.29-acres will protect an area along the road from
development ($175,000).
Carol and

November

also marked the purchase of development rights on 34.29-acres of active agricultural land
on Linden Street, owned by Susan and Warren Hanson. This scenic land has approximately 1,300
feet of frontage on Linden Street and Powder Mill Road and has significant frontage on the Exeter

River ($400,000).

We are working closely
in

with several other landowners, and expect to close on other properties early

2005.

Land Characteristics of significant value

to

our community and properties that feature those

characteristics *

o
o
o
o
o
o
o

& quantity (Hanson property)
town (Callahan & Hanson properties)
significance (Callahan & Hanson properties)

Critical to our drinking

Scenic landscape
Historical

&

water quality

gateway

to our

Potential for present or future public recreational usage (Baglin, Callahan, Conner,

Linking of existing conservation lands

Key

&

Hanson

properties)

easements (Baglin, Callahan, Conner, Hanson properties)

habitats that protect native species (Baglin, Callahan, Conner,

Hanson

properties)

Important agricultural and forest land (Baglin, Callahan, Conner, Hanson properties)

* Characteristics identified in

the

Open Space Committee's Mission

Statement.

Respectfully submitted.

Gwen
Peter

English.

Dow

Chairman

Tom

Chamberlin (Vice-Chairman)

John Haslam, Clerk

Joanna Pellerin
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Don

Briselden

Neal Jones

EXETER COUNCIL ON AGING
The Exeter Council on Aging provides

services for the

community's senior

citizens.

The Town

provides modest financial support to the Council on Aging through the Exeter Parks and Recreation

Department. These funds help defray postage costs and other small expenses. The Exeter

AARP also

provided $300.00 this year. The only other source of funds comes to the Council through donations

from local

One

citizens.

important service the

Town

supports

is

the taxi discount program.

The Town subsidizes

the cost

of the tickets and, thus, pays $2.00 for each $4.00 ticket sold. These tickets are used to transport
seniors to medical and dental appointments, rather than for social occasions.
The Exeter Council on Aging Newsletter

is

a monthly publication providing information

concern for the elderly of our community. This newsletter

based company. Senior Publishing
Lionel Ingram

is

Inc.

The

editor

is

is

on matters of

published free of charge by the Boston-

Peggy Lamb.

the Selectman's representative to the Council.

He keeps

the Council aware of

matters happening within the community, especially those that directly affect senior citizens.

Council

member Robert Swasey

Town's

parks.

Under

recently refurbished.
built in

continues to champion the ongoing upkeep and improvements to the

his persistent guidance the

He

is

commemorative

sign on the

Swasey Park

currently spearheading the Council's support of the

new

gate

was

pavilion to be

Swasey Park.

Eagle Scout, Colby Fortier, continues his plan to construct and supply the library for the seniors
Senior Center on Court Street.

He

at the

has been working closely with Mike Favreau, Director of Exeter

Parks and Recreation on this commendable project.

The Council recognizes

all

the in-kind donations of

its

members and

the

community

at large.

We

encourage, welcome and appreciate any suggestions for improving our activities and services.
Respectfiilly submitted,

Frank Kozacka, Chairman
Council Members:

Frank Kozacka- Chair

Alma

Peggy Lamb Sec'y
George Bragg
Jane McCarthy
Mike Favreau- Exeter Parks and

Ted Klemarczyk-

Hall- Co-Chair

Sandra Cross
Robert Swasey
Recreation

Lionel Ingram- Selectman's Rep.
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NH CoA

Margaret Duhamel- Treasurer

Evelyn Zamowski
Robert Fitzpatrick
Jim Reardon

EXETER DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
with the Town Planner, the Exeter Area Chamber of Commerce and SAU 16, members of the Exeter
Development Commission (EDC) serve on various committees that are addressing ways to best shape our town. The
Parking Task Force, the Downtown Restoration Committee and the Linden Street Re-Use Committee are several of the
groups that will continue to be assisted by the EDC. The Parking Task Force has studied the current parking situation and
determined the solution to Exeter's parking shortage will likely involve providing expanded off-street parking. The EDC
In association

has assisted

in

seeking potential

site

opportunities as well as generating a conceptual design for a municipal parking

structure in an attempt to stimulate a dialogue with

Task Force
effort

is

in their

Town

leaders.

The

EDC

has also supported the efforts of the Parking

sponsorship of several warrant articles seeking to establish a Transportation Improvement Fund. This

seen as a necessary, proactive step

in

tackling the parking shortage.

The Downto%\n Restoration Committee continues to investigate ways to enhance both the functional and aesthetic appeal
of our downtown. This summer, the Downtown Restoration Committee sought financial support from the EDC for a
special traffic consultant with specific expertise in designing round-a-bouts. In an effort to more effectively deal with
traffic congestion around the Bandstand, a proposed round-a-bout was designed and a mock up created for a short trial
period. Although this design solution was ultimately deemed unacceptable, the positive note of the exercise was that the
Restoration Committee was able to test and eliminate one of the potential scenarios for re-shaping the traffic pattern
downtown. The EDC will continue to offer the Restoration Committee support in their efforts for comprehensive and
thoughtful planning of the Downtown.
In

December 2004,

the

most recent

consultant, PeopleGIS, the

EDC

efforts

of the

EDC became visible. Working with

the

Town's cartographic mapping

funded and organized an exciting enhancement to the Town's website. The MapsOnline

Town of Exeter website (www.mapsonline.net/exeternh/) now has a comprehensive series of spherical
photography that showcases many of our Municipal and Cultural institutions. Utilizing /P/X technology, visitors to the
website can get a virtual tour highlighting over sixty familiar places around town, including some
like a view from the
few residents have ever seen. The intent of these enhancements is to showcase the character of
cupola of Town Hall
Exeter as an exciting place to live and work.
page of the

—

—

The opportunity to take a proactive role in promoting the Town for development will continue to be the goal for the
coming year. Strengthening our existing community with more robust retail/business use and supporting redeveloped
parcels such as the forthcoming Stop and Shop on Portsmouth Avenue are keys to a continued vitality. The HDC will
continue to support projects that offer to increase our non-residential tax base while embracing the Town Master Plan.
The Exeter Development Commission is looking forward to 2005 with great optimism. Currently,
positions available. If you are interested in becoming a member, please contact the Chairman.

the

EDC

has two vacant

Respectfully submitted,

THE EXETER DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
Mark Moeller, Chairman

PB

Eric Chinburg
Tracey McGrail

Hal

Macomber

Brian Lortie, Treasurer

Jim The sen

Marc Carbonneau
Dan Chartrand

George Olson, Town Manager

Kathy Corson, Alternate
Doug Eastman, CEO

Sylvia von Aulock,

Craig MacPherson, Vice Chairman,

Paul Binette, Alternate

Rep.

i
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Bill

Campbell, Selectmen's Rep.

Town

Planner

Annual Report of the

Exeter School District

&
School Administrative Unit #16
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Exeter School District

Board Members and District Officers
Chair of the School Board: Joan Henson

Term

Name

Expires

Joan Henson

2005

George Johnston

2007

John Maxwell

2006

Kathy McNeill

2006

Jean Tucker

2007

Regular meetings on the
7:

1

5pm

at the

first

Tuesday of each month

Lincoln Street School Library

School District Website: www.saul6.org
Moderator: Charles Tucker

School District Clerk: Susan Bendroth

School District Treasurer: Deanna MacDonald

Superintendent's Office
Arthur L. Hanson, Ed.D.
email: ahanson@saul6.org

Superintendent of Schools
Paul A. Flynn, M.Ed.
email: pflynn@saul6.org

Associate Superintendent - Director of

Human Resources

Stephen A. Kossakoski, Ph.D.
email: skossakoski@saul6.org

Assistant Superintendent - Technology

Jerome

E.

&

Research

Frew, M.Ed.

Email: jfrew@saul6.org
Assistant Superintendent - Curriculum

Walter C. Pierce,

MBA,

&

M.S.T.

email: wpierce@saul6.org

Business Administrator

127

Assessment

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT SIXTEEN

ARTHUR L. HANSON, Ed.D.

SAU16,

Superintendent of Schools

PAUL A. FLYNN,

s
.

24
tcl:

I

mm Slreel

l-,\eler.

603.775.8653

tax:

NH

M.Ed.

Associate Superintendent

EXETER REGION COOPERATIVE!
STRATMAM
EXETER
BRENTWOODl
NEWFIELDS
E.KINGSTONVJ KENSINGTON

Director of

Human

STEPHEN

A.

Resources

KOSSAKOSKI,

Ph.D.

Assistant Superintendent-Technology

JEROME

03833

E.

Assistant Superintendent-Curriculum

WALTER C.

603.775.8673

www.saul6.org

&

Research

FREW, M.Ed.

& Assessment

PIERCE, MBA, M.S.T.

Business Administrator

SAU

16

REPORT OF ADMINISTRATION
2005

SAU 16 MISSION STATEMENT
The SAU 16 School
values that

will

committed to working together to develop common standards and
graduates who are caring, productive and contributing members of society.

Districts are

result in

In August of 2004, the schools opened their doors with the following enrollments: Swasey Central
School in Brentwood - 367; East Kingston Elementary School - 173; Exeter Elementary (Main
Street School and Lincoln Street School) - 996; Kensington Elementary School - 194; Newfields
Elementary School - 175; Stratham Memorial School - 648; Cooperative Middle School - 1,317;
Exeter High School - 1 ,623, and the Seacoast School of Technology - 560.

New

Exeter High School

The new Exeter High School has proceeded on schedule since

last winter under the astute
16 Business Administrator. Prior to the
groundbreaking ceremony held on May 12, 2004, the site was logged and cleared for the building
footprint, roads, parking and athletic fields. Since May, the site work has proceeded on schedule
and is approximately 75% complete, including five detention ponds, paved roads and parking lots,
septic tanks, site drainage, buried conduit and catch basins. Four of the athletic fields are
completed, including installation of in-ground irrigation systems, fencing and grass seeding. The
building foundation is complete and the underground utilities are in place.

supervision of Walter Pierce, Project Director and

SAU

The extension of the electrical service from Route 27 to the building transformer has been
completed. Masonry walls, steel structure, roofing and building membrane for the west third of the
building are 80% complete. Our construction manager, Harvey Construction Corporation, signed
an agreement in August of 2004 for a Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP) of $39,400,000 which is
what was budgeted prior to the March 2003 Bond Vote. Construction activity is proceeding
through the winter, including structural steel for the remaining two-thirds of the building, mechanical
systems, duct work and electrical wiring. The project will be approximately 30% complete as of
February 2005 and substantial completion is scheduled for June 2006. Updates of the project are

shown on EXTV-Channel 22 and

also displayed on our website,

SAU

www.sau16.org

.

16 Business Office

The SAU Business Office has enjoyed success with general operations and special initiatives
year. The team has continued work on our software conversion, tackled the new GASB 34
accounting standards, supported a multi-district copier
SAU consolidated purchasing efforts.
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bid,

and generated savings with

this

additional

We

are continuing the deliberately staggered Implementation of our new accounting software. As
components of its product, the SAU has lagged behind

the software vendor has released additional

those releases,
fiscal year,

we

application.

software to mature and the working out of any technical issues. This
all purchasing and ledger functions into the new
work next year on the payroll and personnel areas.

to allow the

are completing the transition of

We will

The accounting

industry has paid

much

attention

in

recent years to the

GASB

34 standards, which

increase the level of reporting that governmental entities complete. This year the SAU has
are working to
dedicated a measured amount of time to understanding those standards.

We

comply with

GASB

34

this

year

in

a single

district

as a

first

step

in

globally incorporating these

new

standards.

The Business Office has supported
year to realize savings where possible through consolidated purchasing. A
lengthy survey and analysis of district copier use will provide our schools with improved capacity
managed cost over the coming years. The SAU took advantage of a multi-school, multi-town
bidding process to help keep costs low. Additionally, the SAU built upon the annual supplies bid
savings by joining a purchasing cooperative for plain paper buying this year.
Economies

of scale are essential to effective cost savings.

efforts again this

Last year this office experienced two key staffing changes.
and has incorporated the new members very smoothly.

A

year later our team

is

at

working well

Human Resources
During the summer of 2004, the SAU 16 Human Resources Department met with and processed
employment papers for 51 new teachers and 68 new support staff members. Over all, SAU 16
employs over 900 people working for our various school districts.
This year, the Exeter Region Cooperative School District has been conducting a search to find a
successor to retiring high school Principal Gary Heald. It is hoped that by mid-February a new
principal will be hired and ready to begin his/her new assignment as of July 1 2005.
,

a reminder, the HR Department serves all of the SAU 16 Communities of Brentwood, East
Kingston, Exeter, Exeter Region Cooperative, Kensington, Newfields and Stratham.

As

Technology and Research
TechnoloQY

The goal

continues to be on the integration of technology to support
Toward this end, administrators, technology coordinators,
and teachers are working with Dr Christopher Moersch, Executive Director of the National
Business Education Alliance to continue to build their capacity to implement units of instruction that
use technology as a support to build higher order thinking skills. In May 2004, the SAU 16 Joint
Board approved the addition of a technology integration component into the SAU's teacher
evaluation document Additionally, teachers and administrators continue to have access to many
training opportunities throughout SAU 16 to assist in the development of their technological skills.
of

our technology

student achievement

in

initiatives

the classroom.

SAU

16 has also embarked on an ambitious project to use Open Source software in our local
schools One of the results of this effort will be that school district funds will be leveraged and
maximized because there are no licensing fees for using Open Source software Open Source
solutions will also enable SAU 16 to maximize its computer hardware investment by allowing older
PCs in schools to be used as terminals that operate off a server, thusly increasing the number of

computers available

to students

Open Source

software

12')

will

also provide

SAU

16 teachers and

students will be able to access free software for use at home, which will enable teachers to expand
student learning opportunities outside of the classroom. While this project is in the early stages of
implementation, we expect that students will notice changes to some computers and software
applications in the Spnng of 2005.

SAU
SAU

16 Wide Area Network (WAN) will begin in late January of 2005. This
16 schools and buildings into one large network. Advantages of this
project include; the ability to securely and quickly share documents and resources throughout SAU
16; the potential to consolidate data collection tasks and increase our capability to analyze student
data; and, the capacity to maximize the efficiency of our technology support personnel by enabling
them to remotely administer and repair servers and desktop computers. The SAU 16 WAN will be
completely operational by the end of the 2004-2005 academic year.

The development
network

will

of

an

connect

all

Research
significant initiatives are underway that will greatly expand the ability of SAU 16 staff members
analyze and report students progress. First, each school in the SAU has begun working on the
development of an on-line school portfolio. This on-line portfolio will include information that will
describe the mission and goals of each school, list demographic information; report standardized
test scores; and list areas of strength, as well as, describe areas where the school is seeking to
improve. The ultimate goal is that these portfolios will server as "living documents" that will
describe how each school is working to meet the needs of its students and community. The
second research initiative is the SAU 16-wide survey of students, parents, and staff members. A
survey developed by the Education for the Future Initiative at the California State University, Chico
that has been administered to over 1 million people over the last fifteen years will be used. The
survey seeks to measure the perceptions of parents, staff, and students in the areas of safety,
academic programming, and also solicits responses on each school's strengths and weaknesses.
The Cooperative Middle School and Exeter High School will be surveyed in the Fall 2004 while
elementary schools will be surveyed in the Spring of 2005. The results of these surveys will be

Two
to

included

in

each school's on-line

portfolio.

Great Bay eLearninq Charter School

The Great Bay eLearning Charter School (GbeCS)

will open on January 24, 2005 with 50 ninth
grade students drawn from the SAU 16 towns of Brentwood, East Kingston, Exeter, Kensington,
Newfields, and Stratham. The GbeCS is the first school district sponsored charter school in the
state of New Hampshire. Located in the Exeter High School Annex, the focus of the school will be
to foster student achievement through project-based learning in a technologically rich learning
environment. More information can be found at the school's website: www.greatbavelearn.org
.

Curriculum and Philosophy
•

- In May of 2004, a testing schedule through 2008 was presented to the SAU
16 Joint Boards. That schedule can be accessed from the Curriculum and Assessment link on
the SAU 16 web page and includes the current plan for assessing student achievement and

Assessment Plan

information for instructional decision making through a variety of standardized

developed instruments. That same

link

provides access to

NWEA Assessment

NHEIAP

and locally
grades 3, 6, and

results for

Program (Measures of Academic Progress), New
and "National Assessment of Educational Progress" (The
Nations Report Card). Ongoing Professional Development opportunities are provided to allow
staff members the training needed to maximize these resources.
10, explanations of the

England

Common Assessments,
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•

•

continues
Through the work of the SAD Instructional Council, the SAU Administration
seek alternative means of assessing student performance and gains in academic
achievements

to

Our curriculum alignment timeline is set forth as part of the Professional Development Master
Plan accepted by the State of N.H Department of Education and spans the years 2002-2007
The following is a progress report of the vanous curricular priorities for the 2004-2005 school
year
Literacy

-

Writing prompts for assessing writing

in

grade levels K-10 are developed

for spring

administration.

Science

-

Grade

level

vocabulary and essential questions for each grade
all school and grade levels.

level are currently

being identified by representatives from

Mathematics - Training for EveryDay Math (EDM) and MathScape is ongoing. Common grade
level assessments, parent resource guides, and extended learning packets are topics which
are under discussion.
Social Studies

-

Members are convening

to discuss appropriate

program and student

achievement measurements.
World Languages - In addition to the scheduled 6-12 review this year, a steering committee has
been formed to investigate the potential of applying for a Foreign Language Assistance
Program Grant, if the grants become available.
Music - As an extension of work previously done, which brought about a series of
recommendations in 2002, a task force of SAU 16 music educators are discussing the
possibilities of common SAU 16 assessments and resources in music education.
Family and Consumer Sciences (FACS) - Beginning last spring, discussions are taking place
reviewing the content standards for FACS and how we are meeting them through our
programming and integration with other subjects.
Health - Although the Physical Education and Health Guidelines were adopted in May of 2002,
a task force of Health and Physical Education educators, school nurses, and others have
recently reconvened to address the crisis of adolescent health issues, and to initiate a proactive
plan to address it in our school communities.
•

- A task force has been formed to investigate "best practices and
grade reporting systems". The purpose of the group is to identify
practices and develop recommendations to consider when revising grade-reporting systems.

Grade Reporting Systems

effective characteristics of

•

In all areas where the state has entered into the New England Common Assessment Program,
grade level teachers are reviewing the Grade Level Expectations which were released from
draft form in October 2004 for alignment to our adopted curriculum.

Sincere appreciation is offered to all of the school board members of SAU 16 for their continued
support and dedication to the students of the seven school districts. The Boards' countless hours,
dedication and efforts on behalf of collaborative educational and co-curricular excellence, is often
unrecognized. Their commitment to SAU 16 students and to their communities allows SAU 16 to

be recognized as one of the most outstanding school
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units in the state of

New

Hampshire.
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SAII«16

CALENDAR

KEY

2005-2006
(

)

Bold

AUGUST / SEPTEMBER

FEBRUARY

Teacher iQ-service
Holida> /No School
N'acalion

SCHOOL ADMINISTRATIVE UNIT
FISCAL YEAR 2003-2004

16

SUPERINTENDENT'S PRORATED SALARY
2003-2004

BRENTWOOD

$5,322.00

EAST KINGSTON

$3,248.00

EXETER
EXETER REGION COOP
KENSINGTON
NEWFIELDS
STRATHAM

$19,210.00
$58,555.00
$3,465.00

$3,592.00

$14,105.00

$107,497.00

ASSOCIATE AND ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT'S SALARIES
(Total reflects 2.5+ positions, $46,397,00 $86,000, $84,000, $5,000)

2003-2004

BRENTWOOD

$10,960.00

EAST KINGSTON

$6,690.00

EXETER
EXETER REGION COOP
KENSINGTON
NEWFIELDS
STRATHAM

$39,570.00

$120,600.00
$7,130.00
$7,395.00

$29,052.00

$221,397.00
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VITAL STATISTICS

Reports of Resident
Birth

Marriage
Death

2004

Linda M. Hartson Macomber, Town Clerk
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Congressional Information
2004-2005
State

&

Representatives to General Court - District

Carl Robertson, Exeter

778-71

Matthew Quandt, Exeter

772-3417
772-3417
772-3062

Marshall (Lee) Quandt, Exeter
Stella

Scammon, Stratham

Governor

's

:

Local

M3

Hampton

(Exeter, No.

&

Rogers Johnson. Stratham

1

Eileen Flockart, Exeter

Dong Scamman, Stratham
April Hersey

Mason. Exeter

Stratham)
778-8091
778-0647
772-3062
772-0020

Executive Council- District #3

Honorable Ruth L.

Griffin,

479 Richards Ave., Portsmouth

State Senator District #23

Maggie Hassan, 48 Court
County Commissioner -

Maureen Barrows,

1

St.,

District

Bell

1

Exeter 772-4187 (home)

#2

Avenue, Exeter

Brentwood Ofc:

778-8721

679-2256

National

United States Senators - District #7

Hon. .lohn

E.

Sununu, 25 French Drive, Bedford

NH

Hon. Judd Gregg, 99 Pease Blvd., Portsmouth

031 10

43

1

-2

1

7

United State Representatives - District #1
Jeb Bradley, 630 So. Main

Front Cover Photo;

Back Cover Photo:

Town
Town

Hall

(al

St..,

Wolfeboro

NH

03894

sunset (photo by Barbara Blenk)

Hall flag from inside stairway by Art Gallery (photo by Barbara Blenk)

